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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9200 1-800-852-3345 Ext 9200

Fax:603-271-4912 TOO Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

March 20, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to enter
into sole source agreements with the vendors listed below to provide the services and activities to
promote the health and well-being of refugees resettled in New Hampshire, in an amount not to exceed
$225,000, effective August 15, 2020 or upon date of Governor and Executive Council approval,
whichever is later, through August 14, 2023. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor

Number

Location Contract Amount

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. 222201 Concord, NH $112,500

International Institute of New

England, Inc.
177551 Manchester, NH $112,500

Total: $225,000

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2021 and anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years
2022 and 2023 and 2024, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-95-95-422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, REFUGEE SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number

1

Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $65,421

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $75,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $75,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $9,579

Total $ 225,000
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EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the vendors listed above are the only entities who possess
the comprehensive client information and cultural expertise required to manage client cases and address
the complex, interrelated health and social needs of each individual, Moreover, because Health
Promotion services build upon and flow from the services provided under the Reception and Placement
and Case Coordination grants, contracting with these entities ensures that no clients fall through the
cracks, and that there is continuity of care with no gaps in services.

The purpose of this request is to provide services and activities that promote the health and
wellbeing of refugees resettled in New Hampshire. Services include, but are not limited to health
orientations; health education; medical and mental health case management; and health provider
education. The services are provided in an effort to reduce gaps in services and to ensure refugees
obtain all necessary medical and mental health services beyond the initial health screening.

Approximately 500 individuals will be sen/ed over the duration of the entire contract term.

The Contractors will ensure services include scheduling and coordinating medical and mental .
health appointment; accompanying clients to medical appointments; providing and facilitating
transportation to appointments; and ensuring interpreter services are acquired for all appointments, as
necessary.. ..

The Contractors will be providing these services to refugees; resettled asylees; and secondary
migrants who have been in the United States for five years or less, with a focus on individuals who have
been in the United States two (2) years or less as well as any victims of trafficking, (S!V)'s or other (ORR)
designated eligible recipients arriving in the service areas;

Refugee Health Promotion sen/ices provided by the Contractors will

(1) Promote the health literacy of refugees to enable them to access and navigate the U.S.
Health Care System independently;

(2) Ensure refugees obtain all needed medical and mental health services in a timely and
culturally appropriate manner; .

(3) Increase refugee access to affordable health care over the long term; and

(4) Assist refugees become self-sufficient and decrease the need for public assistance.

The Department will monitor the effectiveness of the Contractor and the delivery of services
required under this agreement using the following performance measures:'

o  100% of all health-related orientations and workshops/trainings shall be provided
throughout the project period, as necessary.

o  100% of all newly arrived refugees and those who have been in the United Slates two (2)
years of less shall be prioritized.

o  100% of all written materials and resources produced shall be identified and prioritized for
translation as applicable.

o  100% of all interpreter services shall be coordinated consistently and regularly throughout
the project period.

o 80% of refugees shall express an increased knowledge about health insurance
requirements including how and where to enroll in health insurance.

o 80% Number of adults with increased knowledge abput accessing and navigating US
Health system



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 3 of 3

o 80% Number of adults who know how to make and keep health appointments

o 80% Number of adults who can use public, Medlcaid and/or appropriate transportation
to get to medical appointments

o 80% Number of adults who demonstrate increased knowledge about at least one health
topic

o  100% Number of clients with health needs beyond initial exam scheduled for follow-up
care

o  100% Number of arrivals with mental health needs scheduled for appointment within 60
days of arrival

As referenced in Exhibit-C-l. Revisions to Standard Contract Language, of these agreements,
the parties have the option'to extend contract services for up to three (3) additional years, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, refugees with complex
health conditions may not receive the follow-up medical care they need in a timely, culturally and
linguistically appropriate manner. The inability of refuges to access necessary health care could result
in a lack of understanding and managing their health and health conditions.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: Administration for Children and Families 100% CFDA# 93.576 FAIN#
In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no.longer available. General Funds will

not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

SPY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

05-95-95-422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,

HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, REFUGEE SERVICES
100% Federal Funds

Ascentria Community Services. Inc. Vendor #222201

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Total Contract

Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 32.812.00

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37.500.00

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 S 4.688.00

Sub Total $ . 112.500.00

Internationa Institute of New Enaland, Inc. Vendor#177551

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 32,609.00

2022 102/500731 Contracts for'Program Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 4,891.00

Sub Total .  42200012 $ 112,500.00

Overall Total $ 225.000.00

Attachment - Bureau of Behavioral Health

Financial Detail
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2; SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I.I
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations ofthe parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Govcmor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to"
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk.of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative.or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are Identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the corhplete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
ihrou^ RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrai7, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shalj comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United Slates issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to.any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, -and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a Slate employee
or official, who Is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Slate may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying (he Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Tcrmiriation Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the Stale's discretion, the Contractor

shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and
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submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean ell
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
flies, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, ̂ d documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returried to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RS A
chapter 91 ̂A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement (he Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officera, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph,, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets pf the Contractor.
12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall Indemnify and hold harmless the State, Its
officers and employees, fnjm and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal Injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omission of the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to tHe
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity ofthe State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
Slate. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% ofthe whole replacement value ofthe property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorserhents approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurer licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
forajl renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certiflcate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with ore.xempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A { 'U'orkers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, aitd
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9.orhis or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and arc incorporated herein by reference. The Slate
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be appli^ against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior.Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any.third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any ofthe provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on August
15,2020.

1.2. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to three (3) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
sen/ices, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreernents with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01 ExMbIt A - Revfstons to Sland^ Contract Provlstons Conlraclof Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT 8

Scope of Services

1. statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide services and activities that promote the health and
wellbeing of designated eligible refugees. Services shall Include, but are not
limited to, medical and mental health case management, health orientations,
health education, and health provider education. Services will ensure that
refugees: (1) obtain needed health (including mental health) care beyond the
initial health screening; and (2) gain the basic knowledge and skills they need to
navigate the U.S. health care system and to manage their own heahh and health
care independently. Services will help to increase refugee access to health care
and to reduce gaps in services.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are delivered statewide with a focus on the

geographic areas of Concord, Manchester, and Nashua.

1.3.The Contractor shall designate a case manager to provide health (including
mental health) case management services to ensure refugees with complex
health conditions obtain needed health care beyond the. initial health exam,
including appropriate health insurance.

1.4.The Contractor shall ensure case management services include, but are not
limited to:

1.4.1. Scheduling and coordinating medical and mental health appointments;

1.4.2. Accompanying clients to medical appointments;

1.4.3. Providing and facilitating the provision of transportation to and from the
appointments;

1.4.4. Ensuring appropriate interpreter services are available as necessary
during appointments; and

1.4.5. Assisting refugees with obtaining appropriate health insurance.

1.5.The Contractor shall ensure a uniform, continuous and timely transition of case
management services from the initial refugee health examination to all heeded
follow-up care beginning after the completion of the initial refugee health
examination and/or on day ninety one (91) of resettlement (whichever is sooner),
to ensure there are no gaps in services and continuity of care.

1.6. The Contractor shall schedule an initial dental appointment for all refugee children
(age 0-18) within six (6) months of arrival.

1.7.The Contractor shall conduct culturally and linguistically sensitive health
orientations vyhich shall include, but not be limited to the following topics;

,  . 1.7.1. Navigating the U.S. health care system.

1.7.2. Health insurance, including Refugee Medical Assistance.

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B.

1.7.3. Privacy and consent laws.

1.7.4. The right to language assistance in health care settings and the role of
interpreters. ' '

1.7.5. Transportation options for medical appointments, including but not limited
to:

1.7.5.1. Public transportation training: and

1.7.5.2. Arranging Medicaid transportation.

1.7.6. Understanding types of health care providers including but not limited to:

1.7.6.1. Primary care providers;

1.7.6.2. Specialists; and

1.7.6.3. Pharmacists.

1.7.7. Understanding types of health care (e.g., preventive, urgent, emergency),
and when, where and hoyv to access each type.

1.7.8. Understanding availability of and when, where and how to access
mental/behavioral health services, including treatment for substance use
disorders.

1.7.9. Scheduling, keeping and cancelling appointments.

1.7.10. What to bringio appointments:

1.7.11. Medication, including but not limited to:

1.7.11.1. The difference between prescriptions and over-the-counter
medication;

1.7.11.2. Refills;

1.7.11.3. Dosage instructions; and

1.7.11.4. Side effects.

1.8.The Contractor shall provide appropriate interpreter services and translated
materials for the health orientations.

1.9. The Contractor shall adapt the health orientation curriculum to accommodate the
needs of new refugee populations, with approval from the State Refugee
Program.

1.10. The Contractor shall maintain documentation of individual refugees who have
received health orientation services, including but not limited to the following:

1.10.1. The individual clients participating in the health orientation;

1.10.2. The topic(s) of orientation completed by each participant;"

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01 ContractOf Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

1.11. The contractor shall conduct both group (defined as a minimum of two (2)
participants) and individual health orientations, including at least one home visit
to reinforce and clarify the information presented In the group setting, and to
address unique issues and concerns.

1.12. The Contractor shall provide, solely or in collaboration with other organizations,
at least six (6) group health education classes. The contractor shall:

1.12.1. Identify topics of concern in each of the various refugee populations and
prioritize the topics that are most urgent or relevant on an ongoing basis;

1.12.2. Invite and arrange for outside organizations to provide health education
classes on the identified topics that are within their expertise:

1.12.3. Schedule the presenters;

1.12.4. Ensure the provision of interpreter services;

1.12.5. Notify clients of c!ass schedules; ■

1.12.6. Health education session topics niay include, but are not limited to:

1.12.6.1: Health insurance terms, coverage requirements, options and the
enrollment process.

1.12.6.2. Disabilities, including but hot limited to autism.

1.12.6.3. Women's health, including but not limited to domestic violence
and reproductive health;

1.12.6.4. Men's health:

1.12.6.5. Emotional Wellness;

1.12.6.6. Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, and Trahsgender(LGBT) health;

1.12.6.7. Oral health and hygiene;

1.12.6.8. Vision health;

1.12.6!9. Nutrition and benefits of exercise:

1.12.6.10.Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV);

1.12.6.11.Tuberculosis risk reduction;

1.12.6.12.Fire safety.

1.12.7. The Contractor shall provide health education in a culturally and
linguistically appropriate manner.

1.12.8. The Contractor shall distribute satisfaction surveys at health education
sessions, to survey clients on the usefulness of the information,
presentation style, and other relevant information.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampehire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

1.13. The Contractor shall Inform and coordinate community resources for the provision
of health care services not covered by Refugee Medical Assistance (RMA) or
other funding sources.

1.14. The Contractor shall support the provision of nonclinical interventions, such as
adjustment support groups, to promote refugee wellness and prevent suicide.

1.15. The Contractor shall participate in National Alliance on Mental Illness Mental
Health First Aide trainings and/or other similar professional development
opportunities, to inform practices.

1.16. The Contractor shall support and/or assist with periodic screening of refugees
for emotional distress using the Refugee Health Screener 15 (RHS-15),
communicate results, and make referrals to health care providers as needed.

1.17. The Cbritractor shall maintain relationships with the health (including mental
health) providers within the refugee resettlement network through, outreach,
education and meetings. Areas of focus shall include but are not limited to;

1.17.1. Refugee health needs and culture.

1.17.2. Barriers to care that may include but are not limited to language, cultural
factors, and transportation issues.

1.17.3. Continued adherence to the CDC Refugee Health Guidelines for the initial
domestic medical examination.

1.17.4. National Standards for CLAS in health and healthcare.

1.18. The Contractor shall develop and foster relationships with a minimumof four (4)
health care (including mental health) providers who are not in the refugee
resettlement network through outreach, meetings and education. Areas of focus
shall include, but not be limited to the following:

1.18.1. Refugee health needs and culture.

1.18.2. Barriers to care that.include, but are not limited to language and culture
barriers, and transportation issues.

1.18.3. CDC Refugee Health Guidelines for the Initial domestic medical
examination.

1.18.4. National Standards for CLAS in health and healthcare.

1.19. The Contractor shall provide education and training to refugees at various
stages of resettlement about the availability of health Insurance through the
Marketplace and alternative sources.

1.20. The Contractor shall provide assistance with accessing, navigating and enrolling
in health insurance options through the Marketplace, expanded Medicaid or
other financial assistance options including but not limited to facilitating
applications.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT 8

1.21. The Contractor shall provide planning and evaluation for Refugee Health
Promotion Program (RHPP), including but not limited to the following;

1.21.1. Develop and collect linguistically appropriate surveys/questionnaires that
are built into health sessions and trainings.

1.21.2. Track the following: ^

1.21.2.1. Numberof referrals made:

1.21.2.2. Number of training sessions and participants;

1.21.2.3. Number of consultations or point of contact with providers;
and

1.21.2.4. Number of meetings and training sessions.

1.21.3. Feedback with health service providers to learn how the coordination is
working and make adjustments as necessary.

1.21.4. Internal feedback with staff, particularly case managers (and other case
management specialists) to evaluate the relevance of the orientations to
implement necessary changes leading to anticipated improvements.

1.22. The Contractor shall communicate any health screening results received,
which may be conducted by the Contractor or by a third parly, concerning a
client, to medical providers as needed.

1.23. The Contractor shall facilitate referrals to behavioral health providers, as
needed.

1.24. The Contractor shall maintain documentation of the following:

1.24.1. Overall number of refugees resettled in the reporting period.

1.24.2. Number of initial domestic health examinations completed within thirty (30).
sixty (60) and ninety (90) days of arrival.

1.24.3. Number of refugees receiving. health and/or mental health case
management sen/ices to address complex health conditions beyond the
initial domestic health examination.

1.24.4. The demographics of the refugees served, including gender, age. primary
language, and country fled.

1.24.5. Number of refugees referred for follow-up services related to Dental
Issues, Emergency Issues (ER), Tuberculosis, HIV, Mental Health.
Infectious Disease. Physical. Therapy. Prenatal Care, Hearing Issues,
Vision issues, and other conditions identified by the NH State Refugee
Health Coordinator.

1.24.6. Number of refugees assisted in obtaining appropriate health insurance -
both upon arrival, and at the time of transition off Refugee Medical
Assistance.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

1.25. The Contractor shall identify the primary health related issues of concern in
each of the various refugee communities. Concerns may include but are not
limited to diabetes, hypertension, mental health and/or oral health concerns.

1.26. The Coritractor shall provide all required reporting to the Department within
fifteen (15) days following the completion of the reporting period.

1.27. The Contractor shall provide semi-annual reporting to the Department within
thirty (30) days following the completion of the.reporting period.

1.28. The Contractor shall provide all required reporting at in-person meetings as
requested by the Department. '

V 1 -29. The Contractor shall have the following staff:

1.29.1. One (1) Administrator; and

1.29.2. One (1) Health Case Manager.

1.30. The Contractor shall participate in. trainings in order to understand health
insurance coverage and enrollment requirements on both the state and federal
level.

2. Reporting Requirements

2.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to the Department within thirty
(30) days following the end of the reporting period, to include but not limited
to: '

2.1.1. Number arrivals by gender and immigration status.

2.1.2. Number receiving tuberculosis screening within the following time periods:

2.1.2.1. Thirty (30) days oferrival;

2.1.2.2. Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and

2.1.2.3. Ninety (90) days or more.

2.1.3. Number receiving initial health exam within the following time periods:

2.1.3.1. Thirty (30) days of arrival:

2.1.3.2. Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and
/

2.1.3.3. Ninety (90) days or more.

2.1.4. Number of children age six (6) months to sixteen (16) years of age that
have been screened for lead.

2.1.5. Number of children scheduled for first dental appointment within six (6)
months of arrival.

2.1.6. Number of cjients referred to the following:

2.1.6.1. Primary care provider;

2.1.6.2. Dental care provider;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

2.1.6.3. Emergency room;

2.1.6.4. Mental health provider;

2.1.6.5. Infectious disease specialist;

2.1.6.6. Vision care provider;

2.1.6.7. Hearing care provider;

2.1.6.8. Pre-natal care provider: and

2.1.6.9. Other specialists.

2.1.7. Number of clients receiving services by country of prigln.

2.1.8. Numberof clients receiving health case management services.

2.1.9. Number receiving mental health case management services.

2.1.10. Number clients participating in an adjustment support group.

2.1.11. Number clients receiving initial health orientation and topic(s) covered.

2.1.12. Number clients receiving health education and topic(s) covered.

2.1.13. Numberof service providers receiving training.

2.1.14. Number of health case manager trainings and toplc(s):

2.2. The Contractor shall submit semi-annual reports to the Department wjthin
thirty (30) days following the period completion, and as required by grantor.

2.3. The Contractor shall submit a final program report to the Department within
thirty (30) days prior to the completion of the contract period.

3. Performance Measures

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure the following performance indicators are achieved
annually and monitored on a monthly basis to measure the effectiveness of
the agreement:

I

3.1.1. 100% of all health-related orientations and workshops/trainings shall be
provided throughout the project period, as necessary.

3.1.2. 100% of all newly arrived refugees and those who have been in the United
States two (2) years or less shall be prioritized.

3.1.3. 100% of all written materials and resources produced shall be identified
and prioritized for translation as applicable.

3.1.4. 100% of all interpreter services shall be coordinated consistently and
regularly throughout the project period.

3.1.5. 100% of all refugees with acute or chronic health conditions who require
care beyond the initial medical examination shall receive case

- management, including but.not limited to:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

3.1.5.1. Scheduling and coordinating medical appointments:

3.1.5.2. Transportation services; and

3.1.5.3. Interpretation services.

3.1.6. 80% of refugees shall demonstrate increased knowledge about health
insurance requirements Including how, when and where to enroll in health
insurance.

3.1.7. 80% of adults will demonstrate increased knowledge about accessing and
navigating US Health system.

3.1.8. 80% of adults will know how to make and keep health appointments.
3.1.9. 80% of adults will know how to use public, Medicaid and/or appropriate

transportation to get to medical appointments.

3.1.10. 80% of adults will demonstrate increased knowledge of at least one health
topic:

3.1.11. 100% of clierits with health needs beyond initial exam will be scheduled for
follow-up care.

3.1.12. 100% of arrivals with mental health needs will be scheduled for
appointment within 60 days of arrival.

3.1.13. A minimum of four (4) new relationships with providers outside of the
refugee resettlement network shall be established during each annual
project period.

3.1.14. A minimum of four (4) meetings with providers within the refugee
resettlement network shall take place during each annual project period.

3.2. The Contractor shall measure program outputs through the following which shall
include but not be limited to:

3.2.1. Number and percentage of new refugees' attending group health
orientations, and the topics completed during each session;

3.2.2. Number of percentage of new refugees' receiving a health home visit.

- 3.2.3. Number of referrals to health, mental and behavioral health or other
services.

3.3. The Contractor shall measure the health literacy among refugees and the
improvement of their understanding of their health and of the American health
system by utilizing a simple questionnaire offered at each workshop and
orientation.

3.4.The Contractor shall , track the number of individuals participating in and
completing health education sessions, as well as the topics covered in each
session.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT 8

3.5. The Contractor shall track the number and percentage of refugees receiving
-health and mental health case management services, including:

3.5.1. Refugee demographics.

3.6.The Contractor shall track the number of health providers in the refugee
resettlement network receiving education/training.

3.6.1. The Contractor shall track the number of health providers outside the
refugee resettlement network receiving education/training.

3.7. The Contractor shall measure the effectiveness of support services provided to
refugees to increase their access to appropriate health insurance by tracking
the number and percentage of refugees accessing affordable health insurance
upon arrival and those educated about and referred for assistance in obtaining
appropriate health insurance when transitioning off Refugee Medical
Assistance.

3.8. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with the Department and other key
stakeholders to adapt any performance targets if necessary.

3.9. The Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan to the
Department for any-performance measure that was not achieved.

3:10. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

3.11. The Contractor may be required to provide other key'data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

3.12. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

4. Additional Terms

4.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes .

4.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation
or court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the
State has the right to rnodify Service priorities and expenditure
requirements under this Agreehienl so as to achieve compliance therewith.

4.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

4.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of the
language assistance sen/ices they will provide to persons with limited
English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.
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EXHIBIT B

4.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

4.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the services
of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The preparation of
this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Oepartmentbf Health and Human Services, with funds
provided in part by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding
sources as were available or required, e.g., the United States Department
of Health and Human Services."

4.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution or
use.

4.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to;

4.3.3.1. Brochures.

4.3.3.2. Resource directories.

4.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

4.3.3.4. Posters.

4.3.3.5. Reports.

4.3.4. The Contractor shall hot reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

4.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

4.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor shall
comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor
with respect to the operation of the facility orthe provision of the services
at such facility. If any governmental license or permit shall be required for
the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times
comply with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In
connection with, the foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities
shall comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the
State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and
shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

4.5. Ellglblllty Determinations

4.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of .individuals such
eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable
federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and
procedures.

4.5.2. Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times
as are prescribed by the Department.

4.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services
hereunder. which file shall include all information necessary to support an
eligibility determination and such other information as the Department
requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and
documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department

. may request or require.

4.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as
well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an
application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed
of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. F^ecords

5.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

5.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor.

5.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and
expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include,
without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of
costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for
materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

5.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visFt records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and eligibility
(including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient),
records regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to
the Department to obtain payment for such services.

5.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
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EXHIBIT 8

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

6. Termination RepoiOTransltion Plan

6.1. In the event of early termination of the Agreement, the Contractor shall, within
15 days of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not limited to,
identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the
Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

6.2. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan including, t^ut not limited to,
any information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the
Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and
revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

6.3. In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to
clients receiving services under the Agreement are transitloned to having
services delivered by another entity including contracted providers or the State,
the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in
the Transition Plan.

6.4. The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected
Individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed
communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State as described

above. > ^

7. Exhibits Incorporated

7.1. All Exhibits D through H and J are attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

7.2. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information
(Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached
Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties

SS-2021-OHE-01,-REFUG-01 Contractor Initials

Ascentria Community Services. Inc. Page 12 of 13 nata TP



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program ^

EXHIBIT B

and is incorporated by reference herein.

7.3. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement In
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
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EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded with federal funds.

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
In the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line item, as specified In Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-4, Budget.

3. The Contractor shall submit an Invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20th) working day of the following month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses Incurred in the prior month. The
Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the

. Department In order to initiate payment.

4. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to laura.mcglashan@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Laura McGlashan, NH State Refugee Health Coordinator
Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Health Equity
97 Pleasant Street, Thayer Building
Concord, NH 03301
(603)-271-2688

5. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each Invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted Invoice and if sufficient
funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions Form
Number P-37 of this Agreement.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State noJater than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. The Contractor must provide the services In Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

8. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of
Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld. In whole or in part, in the event

.  of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to
the services provided, or If the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. Exhibit C Contractor initials,
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EXHIBIT C

10. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement pf both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

11. Audits

11.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist;

11.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR
Part 200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

11.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to
the requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to
charitable organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or
more.

11.1.3. Condition 0 ̂ The Contractor is a public company and
required by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC)
regulations to submit an annual financial audit.

11.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

11.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

11.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. Extiibit C Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.}, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification Is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0:41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1969 regulations were amended and publiS;hed as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu Of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below Is a .
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send It to: '

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited In the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace:
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. -Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

ExNbll D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
Workplace Requirements

cu®MHSrtio7i3 ,* Page 1 of 2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. • Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2, 1.3,1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site<s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance {street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name;

^ j I'V' ̂
Date- - •

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
Workplace Requirements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101 -121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX .
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI v
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub^rantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Meml)er of Congress in connection with this
F^eral contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure, Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included m the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including suticontracfs. sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify ar>d disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required ^
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

VendorName; fiscenioia ,Seru\teS,,^C"

H
Title:^.K'ie.(-" Oo«2»'aV.'^ C fh'cer

Date

Exhibit E - Cenmcation Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's -
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certiHcation or an explanation shall disqualify such per^n from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material.representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Feder^ Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) Is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that Its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended.' "ineligible," "lower tier coverisd
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal." "proposal," and
'voluntarily excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, ft shall not knowingly eriter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. "^A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered transaction that It Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
■ in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Vendor Inllials
And Other Responslbinty Matters

•CLwoHHsnronj Pago 1 of2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.^

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and its
principals;
11.1. are not pTesently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for olhenvise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

. 11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) temiinated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge, and belief that it arid its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant Is uriable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective pariiclpant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name: AscetiVic^ CtmnmuntV^ S'^fviCeS^I^c

DaW Narrjp:
.. .

TiUrf O: PCh AO

Exhibit F - Cenlficatlon Regarding Debarment. Suspension Vendor initials
,  And Other Respcnsbillty Matters
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.T1 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

. certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act Includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regart to employment and the deliveiy of
sen/ices or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, .1683,1685-66), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R; pt. 31 {U.S. Department of Justice Regulation's - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscriminalion; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations);.Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee VVhistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payrnents, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debanment.

Exhlbll G

Vendor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the D^artment of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identifted in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as jdentified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

\ . By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions -
indicated above.

Vendor Name: Gv>^fti»(A>KjScA/tC!LJ>,Tr»c,

Date* Name: 'T*'(v\6Sv\

T»le: chWt c)(Op ff,-V

e/}7/i4

Rtv, 1(y2l/14

ExNbil G .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFiCATION REGARDING ENViRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Pubiic Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facilKy owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or reguiarty for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly of through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facitities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name: CmmuniVi Sccu'iUi,

3

Date Name;XT«JA<HKvj
Tiller ev\,-e.p op< fftctra"^

Exhibit H - Certtfication Regarding Vertdor Initials
Environmental Tobacco Smoke / - | V /
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit!

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshjre, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate' has the rheaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
. of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103; limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit! Contractorlnltiais.
Health Insurance Ponat)ility Act
Business Associate Agreement

Pago 1 of 6 Date ^ X-**



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary"shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Parl 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions • All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protect^ Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit

'  PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the conftdentiality of the PhI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHi until Covered Entity has exhausted ail
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObllQatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate tjecomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an irnpact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

* 0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;'

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
disclosure was. made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed .
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received froni, or created or
received by the Business; Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein. Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party t>eneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, v^rho will be receiving PHI

vv
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
.business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a vwitten request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526. "

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and Information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfil) its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection wth the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitatlon(s) in its
' Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. ■ Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,

shall hiave the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time, to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is.
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with, respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply v^th HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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SeareQation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use arid disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and Indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

The State

S^ti"of Authorized Representative
Name of Authorized^Representative

ASSaoAJi UiHiss
Title of Authorized Representative

i
Date

Name of the Contractor

ature ofAuthonzed Representative

iihvj
^orizeName of Authorized Representative

Chief Op'^raWj Officer
Title of Authorized Representative

Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1.2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or conbact award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Principle place of performance
9. Unique Identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% ofannuai gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3.of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act

Contractor Name: flscenVia SeAjiCeS,loc,

Date - Nam^TtmdlWxj

Exhbft J - Certificstion Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials.
Accountability And Tranaparoncy Act (FFATA) Compliance
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

.  The DUNS number for VQur entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sut>-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

I NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer Uie following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Intemal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 at>oye is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following;

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows;

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount

Amount:

Amount

CU/DHHS/110713

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Furtding
Accountability And Transparer>cy Act (FFATA) CompBance
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, .unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in sectiori two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Staridards and Technology. U.S. Department '
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

' Confidential Information also includes any and all Information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and

•  Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI),. Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
virhich includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software" characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and •
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, blometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying Information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
narne. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United

•  , States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information' (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that Is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute. .

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

- A. Business Use and Disclosure Of Confidential Irifprmation.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may hot use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
; Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
'  secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is erhploying an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS .

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems

.  and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees. Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and.
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When" ho longer In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitizatidn, or otheiwtse physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to.
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain . proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from •
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems.that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an Internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor. Including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and. computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant'to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the IDepartment at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement: The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the Iwundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage, or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential. Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy-Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procuremetit information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach v\rhich affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

•  j

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

vs. Last update 10/09/18 ExhtoitK Contractor Initials.
DHHS Information

Security Requirements ^ r
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.). .

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor rnust notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI. ' '

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach. Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

vs. Last update 1(V09/16 Exhibit K Contractor Initiats
OH HS information

Security Requirements
Page 8 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
.  applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

vs. Last update 1(V09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Irtfofmalion f

Security Requirements a" i ^
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secreiary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY

SERVICES, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on June 13. 2011. 1

further certify that all fees and documents required by (he Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 652197-

Certificate Number 0004486124

O

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd day of April A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Tara E. Browne . hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot iDe contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretarv/Officer of Ascentria Community Services. Inc..

(Corporation/LLC Name) v

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 10. 20 19 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Timothy Johnstone. Executive Vice President and COO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duty authorized on behalf of Ascentria Community Services. LLC to enter into contracts or agreements with the
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract termination to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty (30)
days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s)
indicated and-that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: March 19. 2020

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

V
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Tara E. Browne

Title: Clerk

County of Worcester

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 19th day of March . 20 20.

Bv Tara E. Browne. Clerk. Ascentria Community Services. Inc
(Name of Elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of the Agency)

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires:

o

Rev. 09/23/19

(Npt^y Public/Justice of the Peace)

SiSr.'sW'S,^ OF



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OATS (MMRXVYTYY)

3/18/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFRRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING IN$URER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTinCATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder 1* en ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(lee) mutt be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, eubject to
the terms end conditions of the policy, eertsin pollciot may require en endorsement. A etatomont on this certificate dooe not confer rights to the ^
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Ascentria
CARE ALLIANCE

261 Sheep Davis Road. Suite A-1. Concord, NH 03301
ascentfia.org | 603.224.811 1 j info@ascentria.org

Formerly Lutheran Social Services of New Englatxi

Mission statement:

Ife are called to strengthen communities by empowering people to respond to life's challenges.

Vision statement:

We envision thriving communities where everyone has the opportunity to achieve theirfull

potential regardless ofbackground or disadvantage. We become recognized leadersfor

innovative community services. Together with our partners, we inspire people to help one

another reach beyond their current circumstances and realize new possibilities.

Empowering People. Strengthening Communities. m
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services. Inc. and Subsidiary
Worcester. Massachusetts

Report on the Consolidated FInariicial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ascentria Community
Services, Inc. and Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2019, and the related consolidated statement of activities, cash flows, and functional
expenses, for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated fmancial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors'Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to. obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

A rntmber of

®Nexia
International

A rntmber of

(1)
International



Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, inc. and Subsidiary

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financiarstatements referred to above present faitly. In all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary as of
June 30, 2019, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Effect of Adopting New Accounting Standard

As described in Note 2, the Organization adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-For-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of
Financial Statements of Not-For-Profit Entities. Accordingly, the accounting change has been
retrospectively applied to prior periods presented as if the policy had always been used. Our opinion Is
not modified with respect to that matter.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The supporting Information shown on page 20 Is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Maine Uniform Accounting and Auditing Practices for Community Agencies
(MAAP) and is not a required part the financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal
awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is also presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial staterhents. The
supporting Information required by MAAP and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accouriting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. Such Information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and. other additional procedures In accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,, the information is
fairly stated. In all material respects. In relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

(2)



Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
Deceniber 20, 2019, on our consideration of Ascentria Communi^ Sen/ices, Inc. and Subsidiary's
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report Is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria
Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's intemal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's Intemal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

CllftonLarsonAIIen LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
December 20, 2019

(3)



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ •
Accounts Receivable, Net of Estimated Uncollectible Accounts 3,868,580
Prepaid Expenses 87.471
Vehicle Inventory 70.292 .
Due from Third Party 543

Total Current Assets 4.026,886

ASSETS UMITED AS TO USE

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party 977,537

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Land 45,314
Building 85,798
Building Improvements . 953,881
Leasehold Improvements 353,467
Furniture and Equipment 246,311
Vehicles 344.994
Equipment Held Under Capital Lease • 499.374
Computer Equipment and Software 147.017

Total 2,676,156
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 1.790,804

Total Property and Equipment 885,352

DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 5,781

OTHER ASSETS

Def^rts 104.742
Total Other Assets 104,742

, Total Assets $ 6,000.298

See eccompanying Notes to Consotidated Financial Statements.
.  <4)



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2019

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT UABILITIES
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt $ 43,100
Accounts Payable 922.390
Accrued Expenses 1,055,170
Deferred Revenue 176,471
Due to State of Maine 62,472

Total Current Liabilities 2.259,603

DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 2.802.397

LONG-TERM DEBT, Net of Current Maturities

Total Liabilities

See accompanying Notes to Consoiidated Financial Statements.
(5)

442.534

5.504i534

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) (566.815)
Without Donor Restrictions 1.062,379
With Donor Rwtrictions 495.764

Total Net Assets
$  6.000.298

Total Liabilities and Net Assets (Deficit)



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NET ASSET REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTION

Program Service Revenue:
Public Sources

Private Sources

Donated Vehicles

In-Kind Donations

Total Program Service Revenue

OTHER INCOME

Net Assets Released from Restriction Used for Operations
Other Income

Total Other Income

29,943.008

4,364,898

1,734,097

22,246
36,064,249

282,886

450.077

732,963

Total Revenue 36,797,212

EXPENSES

Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Occupancy Costs
Operating Supplies and Expenses
Professional Fees

Garage Expenses
Donated Vehicle Expenses

Client Support Expenses
Translation Expenses

Repairs and Maintenance
Travel Expenses
Educational Events and Meetings
Management Fees
Taxes

Recruitment Advertising
Advertising
Licenses and Fees

Custodial Fees

Insurance

Interest

Bad Debt Expenses
Depreciation and Arnortization

Total Expenses

OPERATING LOSS

18.359,186

4,103,776
2,074,571

444.508
2,393,074

864,974

619.292
546,303

534,107

389,201

867,166
43,697

5.020,851

555,336

9.918
181,151

7,389
6,009

190,029

34.677

56,981

97,738

37,599.934

(802,722)

NONOPERATING ACTIVITY

Gain on Sale of Property and Equipment
Equity Transfers, Net

Total Nonoperating Activity

DECREASE IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

17,873

(57,346)

(39.473)

$  (842.195)

See eccompanying Notes to Consdidated Financial Statecnents.
(6)



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.
consolidated statement of changes in net assets

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

Without Donor

Restriction

With Donor

Restriction Total

BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2018 (SEE NOTE 14) $  275.580 $ 1.278.529 S 1.554.109

Decrease in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions (842.195) - (842.195)

Change in Beneficial Interest In Net Assets
of Related Party - 66.736 66.736

Net Assets Released from Restrictions - Operations (282.886) (282.886)

Change in Net Assets (Deficit) (842,195) (216,150) (1.058.345)

BALANCE-JUNE 30, 2019 $  (566.615) $ 1.062.379 $  495.764

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(7)



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

Program S«vice« Suppertirtg Savieea

Total

Transportation Dlsabaty& Child & Family Services For Total Managefntnt& Support Total

Services Mental Health Programs Irt^lome Services Hew Americans Program General Fundraising Services Expcnsts .

S^ariM and Wages S  966.707 t  S.73$,S67 S 2.715.256 S 3.953.013 8 4.759.294 3  18.131,639 3 227.347 3 3  227.347 3  18.359.188
Employee Benefits 2S6.07S 1.462,888 516,604 910.093 889.958 3.99S.796 107.980 107.980 4.103.776
Occupanqr Costs 146.286 655.710 464,176 49,184 515.830 1.83t.170 243,401 243.401 2.074.571
Operating Supplies and E^>enses 27,189 206.160 64.069 30.160 88.896 416.474 28.034 28.034. 444.508
Professional Fees 134.810 387.997 1.540.130 8.646 257.567 2.326.970 64.104 64.t04 2.393.074
Garage Expenses 862.333 3.5SS - - 86 864.974 . . 864.974
Donated Vefdcla Expenses 619,292 - - - . 819.292 . . 819.292
Oieni Support Expenses 71 10.162 180.737 22 354.831 545.823 480 480 546.303
Translation Expenses - 30.484 3S7 - 498.641 529.482 4.625 4.625 534.107
Repm and kMntenance '49.633 38,191 100.064 72.631 101.896 382.615 26.586 26.586 389.201

Travel Expenses 1S2.633 228.390 183.221 36.645 272.283 853,372 13.794 13.794 867.166

Educational Events and Meetings 3.184 4.164 14.617 6.798 8.202 38,945 6.752 6.752 43.697

Managemeni Fees • • ■ - . . 5.020.851 S.020.851 5.020.851
Taxes 502 543.621 ,  - 11.132 81 • 555.336 . 555.336

Recruitment Advertising 2.133 215 '  3.271 3.771 336 9.726 190 190 9.916

Advertising - • - - - . 181.151 181.151 181.151
Uccnses and Fees 637 148 3.632 250 563 5.428 1.961 1.961 7.389
Custodial Fees ■ . - - - . . 6.009 6.009 6.009

btsurartca 7.062 59.721 28.969 41.193 49.077 186.022 4.007 4.007 190.029
Interest ■ - - - • 34.677 34,677 34.677

Bad Debt Expenses 188 10.978 . 18.229 27.586 56.981 . . 56.981

Total Before Depredstion '

and Amorttzsiion 3.410.897 9.376.927 5.795,507 5.141.767 7.605.149 31.530.247 5.965.640 6.009 5.971.949 37.502.166

Depredation and Amortization 26.217 6.041 53.607 . 11.785 97.650 88 . 88 97.738

Total Functional Expenses S ' 3 437 114 » 9.382.968 $ 5.649.114 3 S.141.767 3 7.816.934 3  31.627.897 3 5.966 028 3 6.009 3  5.972.037 3  37599934

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in Net Assets 5 (1,058.345)

Adjustments to Reconcile Change In Net Assets to
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization 97.738

Bad Debts 56,981

Gain on Sale of Property and Equipment (17,873)

Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party (66,736)

(Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Accounts Receivable (583,196)

Prepaid Expenses 16,431

Deposits 37,534

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party 287,285

Vehicle Inventory (4.964)

Due to Third Party 885

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 5,976

Accrued Expenses 110,986

Deferred Revenue (40,612)

Due to State of Maine (118.938)

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities "•* (1.276.848)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of Property and Equipment (232,172)

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 22,902

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (209,270)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments on Long-Term Debt (48,988)

Advanced from Related Parties, Net 1.361.351

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 1.312.363 -

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (173.755)

Cash and Cash Equivalerits - Beginning of Year 173,755

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR -

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash Paid for Interest $ 34.677

■See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
m



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

V

Organization

'Ascentria Community Services. Inc. (ACS) and Ascentria Community Care. Inc. (ACC)
(collectively, the Organizations) are corporations exempt from tax under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code as a public charity. Effective July 1, 2018, assets were
transferred to the Organization from Good News Garage - LSS, Inc. (GNG), related parties,
as a result of the combination of operations (see Note 14 for details). The Organizations
provide community service programs to children, families, refugees, and developmentally
disabled adults throughout New England. ACS is the sole corporate member of ACC.
Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc. (Ascentria) is a sole corporate member of ACS and also serves
as the management agent.

The Organizations provide the following programs:

Social Services - through a variety of programs, the Organizations provide services
related to therapeutic foster care, unaccompanied refugee minors support, housing for
teen mothers and their children, housing for homeless, small group homes serving
teenagers, various support services and living accommodations for developmentally,
physically and mentally disabled adultis and other various isocial support programs.

Refugee Services - through this program, the Organizatipns seek to provide
resettlement, employment, case management, medical case management. English as a
second language classes, and other support services to refugees, asylees, and
immigrants.

Adoption - through this program, the Organizations provide services related to domestic
and international adoptions.

Good News Garage - provides low-income individuals with transportation, such as
ownership of donated vehicles or access to shared rides, providing these individuals with
access to jobs and other economic opportunities, thus helping them to achieve economic
independence.

Going Concern

the Organization has recognized their continuous operating losses over the past two years
due to a rapidly , changing business environment. The Organization has made business
decisions over the past couple years to mitigate the impact of potential losses as a result of
the changing business environment. The Organization is transitioning their service model to
one that is customer-driven. Ascentria will support the Organization for any losses it may
incur as a result of management fees charged. This support may include alternative funding
for the management fees charged and offsetting it through Ascentria's investment proceeds
from its other subsidiary in order for the Organization to meet its obligations.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements present the consolidated financial
position, results of operations, changes In net assets, cash flows, and functional expenses
of the Organizations. Material intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Method of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organizations have t>een prepared on the
accrual method of accounting. Accordingly, assets are recorded when the Organizations
obtain the rights of ownership or is entitled to claims for receipt and liabilities are recorded
when the obligation is incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organizations consider all short-term debt securities purchased with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded net of an allowance of expected losses. The allowance is
estimated from historical performance and projections of trends. Credit is extended to
customers and collateral is not required. When the accounts become past due, historically,
the Organizations have not charged interest to these accounts.

fnventorv

Vehicles Identified for the purpose of being delivered to program participants are valued
based on the average contract reimbursement rate for the reporting period which
approximates the lower of cost or net realized value.

Program vehicles expected to be sold at retail are recorded based on trade-in value.

Vehicles expected to be sold at wholesale are valued using the average sales proceeds for
all vehicles sold during the reporting period. *

Vehicles are recorded as donated vehicles or donated vehicles - wholesale when the
vehicle is received.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Assets with an estimated useful life of more
than one year and a historical cost in excess of $2,500 are capitalized. The Organizations
capitalize acquisitions and Improvements, while expenditures for maintenance and repairs
that do not extend the useful lives.of the assets are charged to operations. Donated property
and equipment are recorded at its fair market value at date of donation. Gifts of long-lived
assets are reported as net assets without donor restriction support unless donor stipulations
specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or other assets that must l>e used to
acquire long-th/ed assets are reported as restricted support.

(11)



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property and Equipment (Continued)

Absent explicit donor stipulation about how long those assets must be maintained,
expiration of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired-long-lived assets
are placed into service. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of the assets.

Related Partv Loans Receivable

The Organizations' loan portfolio is comprised on unsecured related party loans receivable
that are noninterest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms, as detailed in Note 3, and
is considered a single portfolio class. Related party loans receivable are recorded net of an
allowance for expected loan losses (allowance). The Organizations establish an allowance
as an estimate of inherent risk in the Organizations' loan portfolio. Although management
believes the allowance to be adequate, ultimate losses may vary from its estimates.

The allowance is established through a provision for loan losses that is charged to expense.
Loan losses are charged off against the allowance when the Organizations determine the
loan balance to be uncollectible. Proceeds received on previously charged off amounts are
recorded as recovery in the year of receipt. The Organizations determined that all related
party loans receivable are fully collectible as of June 30, 2019.

The Organizations review the adequacy of the allowance, including consideration' of the
relevant risks in the loan portfolio, current economic conditions, and other factors
periodically. The Organizations internally monitor related party borrowers to assess the risk
of nonperformance. The Organizations determine that changes are warranted based on

. those reviews, the allowance is adjusted.

Net Assets

Net assets of the Organizations are classified and reported as follows;

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed stipulations.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met
either by actions of the Organizations and/or the passage of time. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature when the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity. Donor-Imposed restrictions are released when a restriction
expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for
which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. Net assets with donor
restrictions consist of $977,537 for beneficial interest in net assets of related party and
$84,842 other program restrictions for the years ended June 30, 2019. There were no
net assets invested in perpetuity as of June 30. 2019.

(12)



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Recoanttloh of Donor Restrictions

Support that Is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase In net assets without donor
restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is
recognized. Ail other donor-restricted support is reported as an Increase In net assets with
donor restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized In the consolidated financial statements If the services
enhance or create nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills, are provided by
individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased If not provided
by donation.

Program Service Revenue

Program service revenue is recognized as costs are Incurred and services are provided.

Donated Vehicle Revenue

Donated vehicle revenue includes vehicles that will be repaired and delivered to program
participants. They are valued based on the average contract reimbursement rate for the
reporting period. Additionally, donated vehicle revenue includes donated vehicles that do not
meet the ne^s of program participants. These vehicles are sold at auction and valued
based on average proceeds for the reporting period.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as Incurred. Advertising costs paid for by the Organization
amounted to $118,678 for the year ended June 30, 2019. Contributions of advertising are
recorded at the estimated fair value on the date of the contribution. The Organization

. received contributions of advertising estimated to have a, value of $22,246 for the year
ended June 30, 2019.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.
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ASCENTRiA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The cost of providing the various programs and services are summarized on a functional
basis. Costs are generaily identified as to program site, and are then aiiocated between
programs and supporting services that benefited based on total direct expenses. Salaries
and benefits are aiiocated on the basis of time and effort. The expenses that are aiiocated
are the portions of depreciation and interest expense that are not directiy attributable to
specific programs or sen/ices. These expenses are aiiocated on a square footage basis.

Income Taxes

The Organizations are nonprofit corporations as described In Section 501(c)(3) of the
internal Revenue Code and are exempt from federal and state Income taxes on related
income pursuant to section 501 (a) of the code.

4

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue represents amounts received by the Organizations for programs and
sen/ices not yet provided.

Fair Value Measurements

in accordance with professional standards, assets and liabilities measured and recorded at
fair value are required to be categorized into, a three-level hierarchy based on the priority of
the inputs to the valuation technique used to determine fair value. The fair value hierarchy
gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets.for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservabie inputs (Level 3).

If the inputs used in the determination of the fair value measurement fail within different
levels of the hierarchy, the categorization Is based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurerhent. Assets and liabilities measured and recorded at fair value by

.  the Organizations are categorized as follows;

Level 1 - Inputs that utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that an entify has the ability to access.

Level 2 - inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly .or
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument. Fair values for these
Instruments are estimated using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar
characteristics, or discounted cash flows.

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservabie inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically
based on an entity's own assumptions, as there is little, if any. related market activity.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement in its entirety. Valuation techniques used need to maximize'the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservabie inputs. There have been no
changes in valuation methodology used at June 30, 2019.

Change In Accounting Principles

The Service has adopted the accounting guidance in Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14. Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958):
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities, which changes presentation
and disclosure requirements for nonprofit entities to provide more relevant information about
their resources (and the changes in those resources) to donors, granters, creditors, and
other users. These include qualitative and quantitative requirements in the following areas;
net asset classes, investment return, expenses, and liquidity. Adoption of the new standard
had no effect on the previously reported total change in net assets or net assets balance.

♦

New Accounting Pronouncements
Revenue from Contracts witt) Customers (Topic 606)
In May 2014. the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606),
which is a comprehensive new revenue recognition standard that will supersede existing
revenue recognition guidance. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange,
for those goods or services. The FASB issued ASU 2015-14, which deferred the effective
date for the Organization until annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Earlier
adoption is permitted subject tO certain limitations. The. amendments in this update are
required to be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented or with the
cumulative effect being recognized at the date of initial, application. Management is currently
evaluating the impact of this ASU on its financial statements.

Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Clanfying the Scope and Accounting Guidance for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made

In June 2018, FASB issued an ASU to clarify and improve accounting guidance for
contributions received and made (ASU 2018-08). The ASU provides guidance on
distinguishing between contributions and exchange transactions. If a contribution Is
unconditional, the entity must determine whether it Is donor restricted for limited purpose or
timing..These contributions should be recognized immediately and classified as net assets
with or without donor restrictions.' If a contribution is conditional and assets are received in

advance, the entity should record a liability and not recognize revenue until conditions are
met. Guidance is further provided regarding reciprocal and nonfeciprocal transactions. If
both parties receive similar value, the transaction is considered reciprocal.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Change In Accounting Princloles (Continued)

For nonreciprocal transactions, an entity must determine the conditions needed to be made.
The guidance will initially be applied retrospectively using one of two methods. The standard
will be effective for the Service for the year ended June 30. 2020. Management continues to
evaluate the impact of the adoption of this standard, but based on the latest industry
guidance, management believes this standard will not have a material impact on the
financial statements.

Reclasslfications

Certain reclassificatipns of amounts previously reported have been made to the
accompanying financial statements to maintain consistency between periods presented. The

^  reciassifications had no impact on previously reported net assets.

Subseguent Events

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Organizations have evaluated
events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through December 20. 2019,
the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2 ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party

The Organizations record beneficial interest in assets that are held by Ascentria in the
amount of $977,537 at June 30, 2019. For the year ending June 30. 2019, the Organization
had a loan payable, included in accrued expenses, to the fund totaling $340,524.
Contributed assets are transferred to the Ascentria by either the donor or the Organization
with the approval of Ascentria. The donors did not grant variance power to the Ascentria.

NOTE 3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organizations have entered into the following transactions with related parties;

•  The Organizations are charged annually by Ascentria for accounting, management
services, and overhead in monthly installments. Charges to operations for these
services totaled approximately $4,928,088 for.the year ended June 30. 2019. These
expenses have been included on the statement of activities under the caption
"Management Fees". In addition, Ascentria is the central contracting entity for
insurance coveragei, and insurance costs are then billed monthly to the
Organizations.

•  In connection with soliciting and managing donations received, Ascentria charged
the Organizations a . custodial fee. The custodial fee charged to operations was
$6,009 for the year ended June 30, 2019.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2019

NOTE 3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

•  The Organizations have various office space rentals to and from related parties and
vehicle rentals from related parties. Rental revenue from related parties amounted to
$119,254 for the year ended June 30, 2019. Office space and vehicle related party
rents amounted to $454,395 for the year ended June 30. 2019.

•  Related Party loans that bear no interest and have no fixed repayment terms, are
as follows:

Due from Related Parties:

Lutheran Housing Corporation Brockton, Inc.
Emanuel Development Corporation

Total

$  5,632
149

A. 5.781

Due to Related Parties:

Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc.

Total

$  2.802,397

2,802,397

NOTE 4 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

The Organizations participate in a defined contribution thrift plan (the thrift plan) qualifying
under Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) maintained by Ascentria. The thrift plan
permits discretionary employer contributions based on a specified percentage of annual
compensation and employee contributions. The Organizations had no pension costs
charged to operations or contributions to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2019.

NOTE 5 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The accounts receivable balance consisted of the following at June 30, 2019 :

$Accounts Receivable - Program Services 3,896,798

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts Receivable, Net

(28.218)

$  3.868.580

NOTE 6 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject^the Organizations to concentrations of credit
risk consist principally of the following:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organizations maintain cash and cash equivalent balances in several federally insured
financial Institutions in the same geographic area as well as a money market fund. During
the year there may be times when uninsured cash Is significantly higher and exceeds
federally insured limits.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 6 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

Major Customer

The Organizations receive significant funding from various federal and state agencies. The
states through which funding was received include Massachusetts, New Hampshire, and
Maine. Approximately 84% of the Organizations revenue was received from state and
federal agencies directly or via pass through for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Due from Related Parties

The Organizations extended unsecured credit to a related party. The balance due to related
parties totaled $5,781 at June 30, 2019.

Beneficial Interest In Net Assets of Related Partv

The Organizations' unsecured gifts, held by a related party, amounted to $977,537 at
June 30, 2019. .

Accounts Receivable

The Organizations extend unsecured credit to its customers. Accounts receivable amounted
to $3,868,580 at June 30, 2019.

NOTE 7 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The useful lives of property and equipment for purposes of computing depreciation are:

Building, Building Improvements, and Leasehold Improvements 5 to 40 Years
Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures, and Vehicles 3 to 10 Years
Equipment Under Capital Lease 3 to 5 Years
Computer Equipment and Software 3 Years

Depreciation and amortization (including amortization of equipment under capital lease)
expense charged to operations was $97,738 for the year ended June 30, 2019.

NOTE 8 MAINE MEDICAID LIABILITY

ACS provides services for Medicaid eligible individuals under terms of costs based contracts
with the state of Maine. Accordingly, ACS provides for the estimated amount of settlements
with Medicaid as a liability. Final reimbursement is not determined until the state of Maine
accepts the cost report. The amount of the estimated liability was approximately $62,000 for
the year ended June 30. 2019. Adjustments to these estimates are reflected on the
statement of activities under the caption "public sources" to the extent not previously
recorded In the year the final settlement information becomes available to management.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2019

NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT

The Organizations are liable on long-term debt at June 30, 2019 as follows;

DescfiPtlon

Note Payable

Term note payable to-6ank of America face amount
$350,000, due August 7, 2033, secured by business
assets, payable In monthly installments of interest
oniy through August 2008 then monthly payments,of
principal plus interest through maturity. Interest rate
is fixed at 7.105% annually.

Mortgage payable to Bahk of America face amount
$370,308, secured by real property owned by ACS at
two locations, and guaranteed by Ascentria, with an
interest rate of 7.01 %, due August 2032. Monthly
principal and Interest payments of $2,670.

Capital Lease Obligations

ACS is obligated under various coital lease agreements
for equiprrient and motor vehicles, expiring in 2019, with

a combined monthly payment of approximately $2,200
with interest rates ranging from approximately 4% to 8%.

Total Long-Term Debt
Less: Current Maturities

Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Maturities

Amount

$  199,377,

271,355

14,902

485,634

(43,100)

442,534

Following are current maturities for the next five years:

Year Ending June 30.

2020

2021

'  2022
2023

2024

. Thereafter

Total

Amount

43,100

32,752

33,944

36,455

39,087

300,296

$  485.634

Interest charged to operations for the above long-term debt amounted to $34,677 for the
year ended June 30. 2019.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 10 OPERATING LEASES

The Organizations lease land, buildings, equipment, and motor vehicles under various
operating lease agreements with terms of. one to three years. Total rent and related
expenses amounted to $1,056,543 for Ihe year ended June 30. 2019.

Future minimum lease payments under these agreements are as follows:

Amount

2020 $ 778,568
2021 490,014
2022 257,828

Total J= 1.526.410

NOTE 11 CONTINGENCIES

A Significant portion of the Organizations' net revenues and accounts receivable are derived
from services reimbursable under Medicaid programs. There are numerous healthcare,
reform proposals being considered on federal and state levels. The Organizations cannot
predict at this time whether any of these proposals will be adopted or, if adopted and
implemented, what effect such proposals would have on the Organizations.

A significant portion of the Organizations' revenues are derived from services reimbursable
under Medicaid prograrns. The base year costs utilized in calculating the Medicaid rates are
subject to audit which could result in a retroactive rate adjustment for all years in which that
cost base was used in calculating the rates. It is not possible at this time to determine
whether the Organizations will be audited or if a retroactive rate adjustment would result.

ACS and Ascentria have entered Into an equity sharing agreement related to four properties
transferred from Ascentria to the ACS on July 1, 2001. The agreemerit states that if the
properties are sold or leased to a third party, approximately 40% of the proceeds will
become payable to Ascentria. Such payment represents the excess of fair value of the
properties transferred over their net book value as of July 1, 2001. A significant portion of
the Organizations' revenues are derived from state and federal government funding. Due to
current economic conditions it is possible that funding from these sources could be reduced
in the near term. The Organizations cannot determine at this time if funding levels will
change, or what financial impact, if any, potential changes would have on the Organizations.

The receivables of the Organizations. are listed as collateral under the line of credit
agreement of Ascentria. The outstanding balance is $2,775,000 as of June 30, 2019. .
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2019

NOTE 12 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Organizations use fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain
assets and liabilities to determine fair value disclosures. For additional information on how

the Organizations measure fair value refer to Note 1 - Organization and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies.

The following tables present the Organizations' fair value hierarchy for those assets and
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30. 2019;

2019

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Beneficial Interest in Net

Assets of Related Party: $ 977.537 $ $ $ 977.537

Total. 977.537 $ $ 977.537

The following table provides a summary of changes in fair value of the Organizations'
Level 3 financial assets for the years ended June 30. 2019:

Balance • June 30. 2018

Income. Net of Releases
Balance • June 30. 2019

$  1.198.036

(220.549)

$  977.537

Since these funds are held by a third party that pools the Organizations' interest with other
related organization's assets, management has determined that the inputs are unobservable
and therefore valued using a Level 3 methodology.

NOTE 13 AVAILABLE RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
commitments. For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures

'over a 12-month period, the Service considers all expenditures related to its ongoing
program activities as well as the condut of services undertaken to support those activities to
be general expenditures.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12
months, the Organization operates a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient
revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted • resources. The
Organization considers the following to be available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures:

Total Financial Assets

Donor-Imposed Restrictions

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs for

General Expenditures Within One Year

$  3.868.580

(84.842)

$  3.783.738
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2019

NOTE 14 ASSETS TRANSFERS

On June 26,-2019 Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (ACS), and Good News Garage -
LSS, Inc. (GNG) combined their operations. The Organizations provide community services

- programs and were combined to further their common mission by improving their community
services programs and achieving economies of scale-and other synergies through
Integration of services. As a result of the combination, the surviving organization Is ACS.

The Organization followed the guidance related to transactions between entities under
common control to record the transition as Ascentria Care Alliance. Inc. (ACA) is the sole
corporate member of both entities. As a result of this transaction, the net assets of ttie
transferring Organization will be accounted for at the carrying amount as of the beginning of
the reporting period In which the transfer occurs. Therefore, effective July 1, 2018 the
carrying amount sof net assets of GNG were transferred to ACS. As of July 1, 2018 the
following was the respective carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, and net assets
transferred;

Total Assets $ 824,075

Cash and Cash Equivalents 42,309

Total Liabilities 307,808

Total Net Assets 516,267
Without Donor Restrictions 29,814

With Donor Restrictions • 486,453

(22)



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF DEPARTMENT AGREEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIOIARY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
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Offlea of Rafwgaaa and Immigranta:
Rofugea and Entrant Aatiatanca Stalo/Replacemont
Ooaigiiaa Admlnlttarad Programt
Rafugee and Entrant Astislanca Stalo/Reptacement

E>e«igne« Admlniatarad Programs
Rafugaa and Entrant Aasistanca Wisen/Fith Program
Rafugaa and Entrant Aasistanca Slata/Rapfacemont
Oaalgnaa Adminlslared Programs
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Refugee and Entrant Assistance Stata/Raptacamant
Oasignaa Adminstarad Programs
Refugee artd Entrant Assistance State/Reptacamant
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Rafugaa and Entrant Assistarwa Discretionary Grants 93.576
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010-042-79220000

010^795-59560000-102-010-042-

010-042-7922CH700-500731-42200010

010-042 79220000 42200011

ia02MORVMC

90ZU0162-02-OS

90ZU0223-02

0ORPO113-O2-OO

EMM SPRMC010CA017

RFP: HHSP233201500046C

30.726

16.778

44.166

52,254

120.427

309.001

30.434

735.001

146.303

4.063

41.600

51.879

CFOA

Numltar

Agency or Pasa-through
Number

Fadarai

Expandlturaa

Amount Provided

to Subraciolant

93.566 INTF0000009921S19369
$  1,665.221 S

93.566 C TOR110017CR ESOOOOOe
134.436

93.566

93.589

CTORI100l7CReS000007

CTORI0100 17 RCM000007 WF

111.259

65,524

93.566

93.583

CTORI010017RCM000007 RSS

CTORI010017CM000006 WF

1,689

■  44.387

93.566

93 566

CTORI010017RCM000008 RSS

CTORI010017SAS000001,
CTOR1010019SAS000001

4.500

10.435 2.274

93.566

93,564

C TORIOl 0019SAS000001

CTORI0100 18 TAG000005

8.450

47.100

2.250

93.566

93.568

CTORI01001SRSI000001

CT ORI010016PRS000002,

CTORI010019PRS000002

1.990

20,960 -

93.568

93.578

CTORI010019SAS00000S

CTORI010018HPP000006 artd

14.820

5.164

3,750

93.586

93.576

010-045-7922000042200013

010-042-7922000042200012

105,106

31.915

•

Seo accompenying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal A wards.

(24)



ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019
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TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL.AWARDS
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) Includes the
federal award activity of Ascentria Community Sen/ices, inc. and Subsidiary under programs
of the federal govemment for the year ended June 30. 2019. The information in this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents! only a selected portion of the
operations of. it Is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net
assets, or cash flows of Ascentria Community Services. Inc.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the,accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Unifomn
Gt//dance. wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. Negative amounts shown oh the Schedule represent adjustments or credits
made in the normal course of business to arhounts reported as expenditures in prior years.
Ascentria Community Services. Inc. and Subsidiary has elected not to use the 10-percent de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services. Inc. and Subsidiary
Worcester, Massachusetts

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United. States, the consolidated financial statements of
Ascentria Community Services. Inc. and Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of June 30. 2019. and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 20,2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Ascentria
Community Services. Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community Services. Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community Services. Inc.
and Subsidiary's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency Is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
Internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to Identify all deficiencies In internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

A n«mbe' of

(^Nexia
lnternaClon3l
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and
Subsidiary's consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a-direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such .an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed rio instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's Internal control or on compliance. This- report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Charlotte. North Carolina
December 20, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH

MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL

CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary
Worcester, Massachusetts

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Ascentria Community Services. Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirernents described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2019. Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors'Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Ascentria Community Services,
Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those
standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Ascentria Community
Services, Inc.'s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Ascentria Community Services, Inc. complied, In all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019..

A rr.amber of
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services. Inc. and Subsidiary

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
In planning and perforrhing our audit of compliance, we considered Ascentria Community Services,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community
Sen/ices, Inc.'s internal control over compliance. ^ '

A de^ciency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described In the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be a material weakness. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report Is not suitable for any other purpose.

ZZ::P

CllftonLarsonAllen LLP

Charlotte. North Carolina
December 20, 2019
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Section Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

1. Type of auditors'reportlssued:

2. Internal control over financial reporting:

•  Material weakness(es) Identified?

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

3. Noncomptiance material to financial
statements noted?

Unmodified

yes

yes

yes

no

none reported

no

Federal Awards

1. internal control over major federal programs:

•  Material weakness(es) Identified? yes

•  Significant deficlency{ies) identified? yes

2. Type of auditors' report issued on
compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with
2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes

no

_x none reported

X  no

Identification of Major Federal Programs

93.566 Refugee and Entrant Assistance - State
Administered Programs

Dollar threshold used to distinguish l«tween
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

I  750.000

X  ves no
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

^  Section 11 - Financial Statement Findings

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance witti Government Auditing
Standards.

Section III - Findings and Questioned Costs ~ Major Federal Programs

Our audit did not disclose iany matters required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a).

(32)
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Ascentria
CARE ALLIANCE

FY2020 Board and Committee Membership

Board of Directors & Corporate Officers

William Mayo (Chair)

Karen Gaylln (Secretary)

Angela Bovlll (Ex-Officio w/Vote)

Rev. Laura Everett

Scott Hamilton

Frederick Jenoure

Rev. Ross Goodman (Vice Chair)

Garth Grelmann (Financial Secretary)

Barbara Ruhe

Kimberly Salmon

Peter Schmidt

Keith Robertson

Rev. James Hazelwood (Ex-Officio)

David Forsberg (Emeritus)

Angela Bovill (President)

Timothy Johnstone (EVP)

Nicholas Russo (Treasurer)

Rev. Timothy Yeadon (Ex-Officio)

Gail Biicher (Emeritus)

■  T >. -v.. , ,1 .-. . -> A.. ..1

Jeanette Wade (EVP)

Jeff Kinney(EVP}

Tara Browne (Clerk)

Executive Committee

William Mayo (Board Chair)

Karen Gaylin (Secretary, LDC Chair)

Angela Bovill (President)

TOO I'SDC Choii'}

Ross Goodman (Board Vice Chair)

Garth Greimann (Fin Secretary, FIN Chair)

TBDiRDC Chair)

Last Updated: Monday. September 9, 2019Tue5day, March 17, 2020
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Vijay Bhujel

WORK EXPERIENCE

Ascentria Care Alliance

Health Case Manager January 2016-November 2017, February 2018 to Current
Client Services

-  Serve refugees during their initial period of resettlement by facilitating access to hospitals, clinics and office
visits. This includes ensuring that refugees have appropriate assistance for appointments including
transportation and interpretation and liaising with service providers to ensure culturally appropriate and high
quality care.

-  Schedule initial health screenings for refugees in accordance with contractual standards. Make any
necessary pre-arrival arrangements for complex medical cases.

- . Responsible for providing effective leadership to Health Case Management team and delivering quality
services to the individuals served.

Partner Relations and Coordination

-  Serve as primary contact for health, mental health and specially health care providers; coordinates with
agencies on services refugees' access and follows up on individual cases as needed.

I

•  Serve as a liaison between human service agencies and social services organizations and refugees to
facilitate access to services that promote the Social Determinants of Health.

•  Oversee maintenance of relationships with health and social services organization contacts through
frequent communication and coordination.

-  Networks and develops relationships with potential providers.

-  Provide and/or promote educational offerings to health and social service organizations regarding
culturally and linguistically appropriate services

Community Health Worker November 2017-February 2018
•  Served as a liaison between Nashua area health and. social services organizations and refugees and

immigrants to facilitate access to services and improve the quality and cultural competence of service
delivery.

-  Oversaw maintenance of relationships with health and social services organization contacts through
frequent communication and coordination.

-  Networked and developed relationships with potential providers.
•  Created and supported connections with government agencies, provider associations, and community

members.

-  Promoted educational offerings to health and social service organizations regarding culturally and
linguistically appropriate services.

Bicultural Coordinator June 2013 to January 2016
-  Increased coordination and collaboration among elderly service providers, ethnic community and refugee

elders.

-  Assisted older Bhuianese Refugee with accessing mainstream aging services.
-  Developed additional culturally and linguistically relevant activities for older refugees.

Community Bridges of NH
Direct Support Provider February 2014 to Current

-  Provide direct support to individuals with disabilities such as transportation to daily activities in the •
community, which includes exercising, volunteering, social activities and work.

-  Promote and engage individuals with disability in activities that meet the objectives contained in his
Individual Service Plan, with an emphasis on living independently.

-  Responsible for administering medication of the individuals with disabilities.



-  Record keeping of individuars daily activities and also responsible for reporting the monthly progress
notes to the Program Manager

Wal-Mart Supercenter Concord, NH
Inventory Associate March 2013-June 2013

-  Unloading and stocking of new merchandise. Customer support and service.

Reliance English School • Morang, Nepal
Mathematics and Sciences Teacher 2007-2012

-  Taught mathematics and science to students in grades 8 through 10.
-  Designed and presented comprehensive lesson plans ensuring that each student could retain and understand

each lesson. Acted as the "Academic in Charge" for testing of students and teachers.
-  Developed unit-based projects to tic curriculum to real life.

The Spangle High School - Kathmandu, Nepal
Mathematics and Sciences Teacher 2004-2007

-  Taught mathematics and science to students in grades 6 through 10.
-  Planned and implemented science and math curriculum to improve retention and test scores.
-  Acted as Resident Advisor to students living in a dormitory setting. Responsible for the schooPs discipline

policies and procedures as well as student disciplinary decisions.

Panchaoti English School - Jhapa, Nepal 1999-2004
Community School Teacher

• Assigned various disabled students and provided them with learning support, personal care and help with
the school to home transitions.

-  Taught mathematics and sciences to students in grades 6 through 10. Introduced stimulating and engaging
lessons to capture the students' attention and interest. Provjded clear and consistent directions to keep
students focused on the task.

-  Coordinated with colleagues to share best practices and address academic issues.

Cultural In Charge
- Worked as Cultural In Charge in Panchaoti English School, helping students adjust to new culture trends.
-  Coordinated the Bhutanese Refugee Children in the field of cultural arts.
- Worked as a curriculum developer to prepare lesson plans and work with administrators to ensure that the

curriculum meets professional standards.
-  Engaged students through music, visual arts, dance, languages, and theater performance to enrich them

with cultural values.

- Monitored the classroom and assigned special projects that utilize creative expression as a means of .
cultural edification.

EDUCATION

Tri Ratna Secondary School
High School Diploma

1994-1998

Kumudini Homes

Associate's Degree
1998-2000

Government-College of Kalimpong
University of North Bangal
B.S.C Science- Physics

2000-2003



Amy E. Marchildon

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Asceatrifl Care Alliance Concord, NH

Directort Services for New Americans 10/2007 - Present
Refugee Resettlement:
•  Implement and manage the U.S. Department of State and Office of Refugee Resettlement

refugee resettlement program-including provision of basic needs, case management,
cultural orientation and adjustment, youth and older adult programs, English language
programs, employment services, and volunteer support.

• Manage 10 to 20-person team; responsible for workflow, training and personnel issues.
•  Responsible for up to $2M program budget (includes federal, state and private contracts).
•  Responsible for grant-writing, contract execution, program design and implementation,

monitoring and evaluation, performance and quality improvement initiatives, and
reporting.

•  Lead special projects including a Medicaid waiver demonstration project (focused on
community health work and cultural effectiveness training), and the Partnership for
Refugee Wellness project based in Worcester, MA (focused on coaching, social
determinants of health and community partner coordination - 07/16 • 06/17).

• Advocate at local, state, and federal levels (including legislative advocacy).

•  Provide public education, conduct community outreach, and participate on local
committees and coalitions related to refugees/immigrants and workforce development.

•  Represent the program at local, state and national levels including chairing and
.  participating on advisory committees to National Resettlement Agencies.

Health Profession Opportunity Project (2011-2015):
•  Implemented and managed 4.5-year health profession-related workforce

development program including coaching, case management, employment and
financial assistance services. Primary participants included TANF/SNAP
populations.

, • Managed 8-person team; responsible for workflow, training and personnel issues.
" • Responsible for $10M program budget.
•  Responsible for program design including creation of local business advisory

councils, monitoring and evaluation, performance and quality improvement
initiatives, and reporting. - .

Language Bank (2010-2015):
• Managed statewide 24/7 foreign language and ASL interpretation and translation

services, which includes medical and legal interpretation.
• Managed 10-person administrative team and up to 150-person interpreter team.
• Responsible for approximately $1.25M program budget.
•  Secured and executed state contracts with the NH Department of Health and

Human Services and the Administrative Office of the Courts.

General Ascentria Contributions:

•  Chair NH-VT Performance Quality Improvement (PQl) Team; co-chair NH-VT
Safety Committee; chaired HEARTS (honoring employees and raising team
spirit) Committee; participate on Safety Steering Committee, Merit Compensation
Committee, Contract Management/Program Expansion Team, Advancement
Strategy Team; participated on Agency PQI Committee, Accreditation Advisory
Team, ACE (achieving client engagement) Committee and its subcommittee FAD
(framework and design); and called upon for grant-writing and associated
program design and budget development including public and private grants at the
federal and local levels for a variety of Ascentria programs and initiatives.



Program Manager * 08/2005-09/2007
•  Responsible for day-to-day operations of the refugee resettlement program.
•  Supervised I O-person team.
• Managed $.75 M program budget.

Case Manager/Matching Grant Coordinator 09/2002-08/2005

•  Coordinated core resettlement services and employment activities for refugees in
compliance with federal and state contracts.

Refugee Services of North Texas Ft. Worth, TX
Sub-Ofjice Director 01/2001-07/2002

•  Coordinated resettlement activities and supervised 5-person team.
•  Advocated for refugees at local and national levels.

Matching Grant Coordinator 09/1999-12/2000

• Managed employment program including completing enrollment and status reports.

• Generated, tracked and reported cash and in-kind donations.

Immigration and Refugee Services of America Ft. Dix, NJ
Caseworker May-July 1999

•  Registered newly arrived Kosovar refugees into Ft. Dix army base, NJ.
•  Interviewed refugees and prepared cases for US Citizenship and Immigration Services

screening.

•  Prepared travel packets for International Organization of Migration.

Austin Metropolitan Ministries Austin, TX
Matching Grant Coordinator 01/1998-05/1999

• Managed employment prograrh including completing enrollment and status reports.
•  Generated, tracked and reported cash and in-kind donations.

Refugee Resettlement Case Manager 09/1996-05/1999

•  Coordinated resettlement activities for newly arrived refugees including volunteer
support, and prepared case status and financial reports.

EDUCATION

Colby College Watcrville, ME
Bachelor of Arts, double major in art history and classics with a minor in religion, 1994.

ASSOCIATIONS

Association for Refugee Service Professionals 2010-prescnt

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE

Zonta Club of Concord Concord, NH

• Member of service organization empowering women and girls through menlorship,
educational scholarships and fundraising, 2009-2018.

President, 2014-2016 / Board of Directors 2010-2018.

Community Service Corps Volunteer Program Syracuse, NY
Refugee Resettlement Caseworker 08/1994-08/1995

•  Coordinated resettlement activities for newly arrived refugees.
House Manager - Dorothy Day House 08/1994-08/1995

•  Created and managed children's daycare program at women's shelter.



CONTRACTOR NAME: Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

Key Personnel

Budget Period: 8/I5/2C -6/30/21

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Vijav Bhujel Health Case Manager $37,835 45.00% $14,898
Amy Marchildon Director $70,000. '  5.00% $3,062

'

.

Budget Period: 7/1/21 -6/30/22

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Vijay Bhujel Health Case Manager $37,835 45.00% $17,026

Amy Marchildon Director $70,000 5.00% $3,500

Budget Period: 7/1/22 - 6/30/23

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from-

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Vijay Bhujel Health Case Manager $37,835 45.00% $17,026

Amy Marchildon Director $70,000 5.00% $3,500

Budget Period: 7/1/23 - 8/14/23

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Vijay Bhujel Health Case Manager $37,835 45.00% $2,128

Amy Marchildon Director $70,000 5.00% $438



KOKM NUMHKR P-37 (Vcrjion 12/11/2019)

Subjcct:_Ncw Hampshire Refugee Heallli Promotion Program (SS-202I-OHE-01-RBFUO-02)

Kftticc: I'tiis agreement mid all of its attnclimcnis shnii become public upon submission to Governor and
t'.xecmive Council for R|)proval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprictar)* must
t>« clearly identified «o the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the coiitmct.

AGKEtMKNT

The State of New Hampshire nncl Uic Contrncior hereby nniiually agree as follows:

CF.NERAI, PROVISIONS

1. IDKMIHCAJIUiN.

I.r State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and 1 luman Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 0330I-3S.'^7

1.3 Contractor Name

Inlcrnationnl Insiiliiic ofNcw l-^nglatici. Inc.

1.4 Coniracior Address

2 Boylston Street 3rd Floor
Boston, MA, 021 !6

1.5 Contractor Phone
Ninnber

(617)695.9990

1.6 Account Number

05-09'5-042-7922000-
42200012

1.7 Completion Dale

August 1*1, 2023

1.8 Price Limitntioii

1 12,500

1.9 Contracting OfTicer for Slate Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Ntimber

(603)271-9631

'LrTl CoKiracipr Signature i /

\ VlSsO-v Dntc^ -
1.12 Nninc and Title of Contractor Signaiorj-
Jeffrey Thielman, President and'CEO

1.13 SlaieAgeii^ Signature 1.14 Name Oiul Tide ofStiile Agency Signntory ^

-km tmu.
1; 1.5 Approval by the N.M. Dcpaitnicni of Administration. Division of Personnel (if opplicbhfv)

gy. Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney Gcnaml (Fwin, Substance and E.>;cciitidti)Y(/'iippticpbh)

1.17 Appmvnll^ thcGovcrnorand ExcculivcCoiincil f(/'n/VJ//cnA/t9 *

G&Clicm nhmticr:: OAC McciliigDatc:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PKRFORMKD. The Stutf of New

HniDpsliire, acting through tiie agency identincd in block I.I
("Stale"), engages contractor identified in block I..")
("Contractor") to pcrfonn, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more p.nrticiilnrly
described in the attached EXI-KDIT B wliich is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE D.ATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 NotwiihsiatHJing any. provision of this Agreement to the
contrar)', and subject to the approxTil of tlic Governor and
E.vecutive Council ofihc State of New Hampshire, ifnpplicoble,
(his Agreement, and all obligations of the parlies hereundcr, shall
become effective on the dnte the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17;
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
.shall become effective on the date the Agreement Is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
liffeciive Dale, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of lite
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does iwi become
effective, the State shall iiove no liability to the Contractor,
including willrout limitation, inny obligation to pay lltc
Contractor for any costs iiicuircd or Services pcrfonncd.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF ACREEiMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of tliis. Agreement io the
contrnr)'. all obligations of the State liereunder, including,
u'ithout liinilalion, the continuance of payments hcreuitder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or e.vcctiiivc
action lliat reduces, eliminates or otiicrwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided,in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event sliall the State be liable for any payments
licrcundcr in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated fiind.s, the
Slate shall have the right to withhold paymciU until such funds
become available. If ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Sciviccs under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The Slate shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account Identified in block, 1.6 In the

event funds in that Accounl arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms ofpayment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incor|>oratcd licrcin by reference.
5.2 The payment by.tlie State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
e.Npenses, of whatever nature incurre<l by llic Contractor in the
perfonnnnce hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any nmoimts
otherwise pn>'nble to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or penmtlcd by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Nolwiihsianding any provision in this Agreement .to the
contrary, and notwiihsianding une.vpecied circumstances, In no
event shall the total ofall payments authorized,or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULA'l IONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMEiN f
OPPORTUNITY,

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, cbunly or municipal
authorities which . Impose any obligation or duty upon tlie
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by tnoniesofihc United States, the Contractor
shall comply wiiii all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and siittules, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as (he
Slate or titc United Slates issue to intplemcnt these rcgidations.
the Contractor shall also compi)' with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 Utiring the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicanis for ctuployment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, se.\, hattdlcap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will lake affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
63. 3 he Contractor agrees to pcnnil the Stale or United Stales
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and acctnmts for
the ptJiposc ofasccdainingcompliance with all rules, regulations
and oilers, and (he covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
iKccssary to perform the Services. The Contractor Nvnrrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be ptxrpcrly liccnscti and
otherwise antlK>rizcd to do so under all applic.tblc laws.
7.2 Unless otiicrw'isc autliorizcd in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a peritxl of six (6) months after the
Completion Date In block ).?, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not |>criuii an)' subcotilractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged In a combined effort to
pcrfonn the Services to hir e, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved'in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall sitrvive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified iit block 1.9, or Iris or her
successor, shall be the Stale's rcprcscniaiivc. In the evetu of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, lltc
Contntcting Officer's decision shall be fi mil for the State. •
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following nets or omissions of the
Contracior simll coristititte nn event of defniilt hereunJer ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to. pcrfonn the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to subntii any report required hcrcundcr; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of tlvc following nctions:
8.2.1 give the Contraciorn written notice specifying the Event of
Dcfnult and requiring it to be rcmcdic<l within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
dale oflhe notice; and ifthc Event of Default is not timely cured,
temtiiiaic this Agreement, cfiecilvc two (2) days afler giving (he
Contractor notice of tcnnination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Dcfnult and suspending nil payments to be made uiiticr this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
pcrlcKl from the date of such notice until such time as the Slate
determines that the Contractor has cured the EntoI of Default

sliali never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Dcfnult and set off against nny other obligations the Slate inay
owe to the Contractor any riamagcs the Stale sulTers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Conirnctor a written notice specifj ing the Event of
Dcfnult^- treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
botif. _
8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereofafler
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver ofits rights with
regard to that Event of Dcrnult, or nny subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Dcfnult shnll
be deemed a waiver of the right oflhe Stale to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon nny further or other Event of
Default oti the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8. the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in witole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Conirnctor that
tire State is e.vercising its option to (ennliiate the Agreement.
9.2 Iii the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shnll, at the State's discretion, deliver to tlic
Contracting Officer, not Inter than flfieen (I .S) days aficr the dale
of tenninntion, a report ("Termination Report'!) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and Including the 'date of termination. The fonn, subject mailer,
cuiitcnt, aiul number of co|)ics of (he Tcnnination Report shall
be identical to those of any Einal Kcpori described in the attached
EXi IIDIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within IS daysofnolice of early tenninntion, develop and

submit to the Stale a Transition IMan for services under (he

Agreement.

10. l)ATA/ACC:t:SS/C0NFI0ENTIALIiA7

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
infomi.ation and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawing's, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and nny property which has been received from
the Slate or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of tlie Stale, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination .
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidcmlidity of data shall be govcnicd by N.H. RSA
chapter 9)-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires'
prior written approval oflhe State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

pei'furmaiice of tins Agreement the Conlractnr is in all res|}ects
an indeivendcnt contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the Stale. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or mcnibcis shall have authority to
bind the State orccccivc any hcncfit.s, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the Stale to its employees.

12. ASSICNMKN'l7I)EI,ECAriON/SlinCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shnll not assign, or olhcrwisc transfer any
interest in (his Agreentciit without the prior written notice, which .
shall be provided to the State at least fifieen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of tiic State. For pur})0scs
of this .paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" mcajis (a)' merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
.which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of 11 fly percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting .
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the'assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is ciitiilcd to copies ofall subconlracts and nssignmcnt
agrectnenls and shall not be bound by any provisions conlaiticd'
in a snbcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is nut a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by ln\v, .
(he Conirnctor shall indemnify and hold harmless tlie Slate, its
olTlcers hikI enipiuyces, from und ugainst any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for nny personal injury or property damage.s,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omission of the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by (lie Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notsvi'thstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver ofthc sovereign
imimmity of the State, \vhich immunity is hereby reserved to tl>c
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall sur\-ive the
terniination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE. .

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously mnintaiii in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and niaiiitain in force, (he
following insuraiKc:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against nil claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in nmounis of not
less tlian $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or e.xcess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject (o subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount ik)1 less than
S0% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described,in subparagrajjli 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the .State
of New Hampshire by the N.ll. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of Ne\v Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ccrlificatc(s) of
insurnnce for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agrccineni no
later than ten (10) days prior to the e.xpiration date of each
iiisnraticc policy.' The ccr(lficntc(s) of Insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be altaclied and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 Uy signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and wan-ants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A ( 'IVorkcrs'
CoiiiiKmalion").
15.2 To the cxlcni the Cotitractor is subject to the requirements
of N.ll. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor oi- assignee to secure and maimain,
payment of Woi-ker.s* Compcnsatiou in comicclicm with
ncliviiies which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to ihls
Agreetncni. The Comiaclor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the inatmcr described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A nnc) any applicable rcncwal(s) thereof, wiiich shall be
attaclied and arc incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Conlraetor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshitv
Workers' Compensation laws in cojincciioii with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to (he other party
shall be deemed to have been duty delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office Qddre.sse(l to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDiMEN r. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by (he

. puriics hereto and only af^cr approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by (he Governor and'F..xcculivc Council of
(lie Slate of New I lampshirc unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to Stale law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and ossigns. Tlic wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express (heir mutual intent, and no nile
of corwiruction shall be applied ngninsi or in favor ofany parly.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New i lampshirc Superior Court which shall have
c.xclusivc jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or alinclimcnis and amemltnenl thereof, the tenns of the
P07 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer'any such benefit.

21. IIE.ADINGS. The headings throughout the Agiccmcnl arc
for reference purjxises only, and iIk words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, conslritclion or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the aiinchcd EXHIBIT A nre iiKorporated
licrein by reference.

23. SE\'ERADILn'\'. In the event any ofthc provisions of this
Agreement nre lield by a court of coni|>ctcnt juiisdiction to be
contrary to any State or federal law, the remaining provlsions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which maybe
executed in n number of coimtciparts, each of which shall be
ilecmcd an original, constitutes the entire agrceinciil ami
uiulcrstanding between the parlies, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to (he subject matter
hereof.
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New Harfipshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as Indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parlies hereunder, shall become effective on August

, 15.2020.

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion-of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

■ 3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to three (3) additional years
frorn the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12.'Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

'12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed jf the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall mhnage the
subcontractor's, performance on an ongoing basis and lake corrective
action as necessary, the Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the Stale of any inadequate subcontractor performance..

SS-2021-OHE-01-RGFUG 02 ExWWI A - Revisions lo Siandard Conlfacl Provisions Contraclof IniUals ^ »
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee, Health Promotlon'Program

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide services and activities that promote the health and
wellbeing of designated eligible refugees. Services shall include, but are not \
limited to, medical and mental health case management, health orientations, j
health education, and health provider education. Services will ensure that i
refugees: (1) obtain needed health (including mental health) care beyond the I
Initial health screening: and (2) gain the basic knowledge and skills they need to j
navigate the U.S. health care system and to manage their own health and health |
care independently. Services will help to increase refugee access to health care
and to reduce gaps in sen/ices. , |

1.2.The Contractor shall ensure services are delivered statewide with a focus on the
geographic areas of Concord. Manchester, and Nashua. j

1.3.The Contractor shall designate a case manager to provide health (including .
mental health) case management services to ensure refugees with complex |
health conditions obtain needed health care beyond the initial health exam.
including appropriate health insurance.

1.4. The Contractor shall ensure case managernent sen/ices include, but are not
limited to:. !

1.4.1. Scheduling and coordinating medical and mental health appointments;

1.4.2. Accompanying clients to medical appointments; f

.  1.4.3. Providing and facilitating the provision of transportation to and from the j
appointments; •

1.4.4. Ensuring appropriate interpreter services are available as.necessary
during appointments; and '

i

1.4.5. Assisting refugees with obtaining appropriate health insurance. j

1.5. The Contractor shall ensure a uniform, continuous and timely transition of case j
management services from the initial refugee health examination to all needed :
follow-up care beginning after the completion of the initial refugee health j
examination and/or on day ninety one (91) of resettlement (whichever is sooner),
to ensure there are no gaps in services and continuity of care.

■  1.6. The Contractor shall schedule an initial dental appointment for all refugee children ;
(age 0-18) within six (6) months of arrival. j

1.7.The Contractor shall conduct culturally and linguistically sensitive health
orientations which shall include, but not be limited to the following topics: \

1.7.1. Navigating the U.S. health care system. . ■

.1.7.2. Health insurance. Including Refugee Medical Assistance.

SS-2O21-OHE-01-REFUG-02 Conlractof Initials ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

i .7.3. Privacy and consent laws.

1.7,4.. The right to language assistance in health care settings and the role of
Interpreters.

1.7.5. Transportation options for medical appointments, including but not limited
to:

1.7.5.1. Public transportation training; and

1.7.5.2. Arranging Medicaid transportation.

1.7.6. Understanding types of health care providers including but not limited to: .

1.7.6.1. Primary care providers;

1.7.6.2. Specialists; and

1.7.6.3. Pharmacists.

1.7.7. Understanding types of health care (e.g.. preventive, urgent, emergency),
and when, where and how to access each type.

1.7.8. Understanding availability of , and when, where and how to access
mental/behavioral health services, including treatment for substance use
disorders.

1.7.9. Scheduling, keeping and cancelling appointments.

1.7.10. What to bring to appointments.

1.7.11. Medication, including but not limited to:

1,7.11.1! The difference between prescriptions and over-the-counter
medication;

1.7.11.2. Refills;

1.7.11.3. Dosage instructions; and

.  1.7.11.4. Side effects. .

1.8. The Contractor shall provide appropriate interpreter services and translated
materials for the health orientations.

1.9. The Contractor shall adapt the health orientation curriculum to accommodate the
needs of new refugee populations, with approval from the State Refugee
Program.

1.10. The Contractor shall maintain documentation of individual refugees who have
received health orientation services, including but not limited to the following:

1.10.1. The individual clients participating in the health orientation;

1.10.2. The topic(s) of orientation completed by each participant;

SS-2021-OHE-01 -REFUG-02 Contractor Initials '
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EXHIBIT B

1.11. The contractor shall conduct both group (defined as a minimum of two (2)
participants) and individual health orientations, including at least one home visit
to reinforce and clarify the information presented in the group setting, and to
address unique issues and concerns.

1.12. The Contractor shall provide, solely or in collaboration with other organizations,
at least six (6) group health education classes. The contractor shall:

•1.12.1. Identify topics of concern In each of the various refugee populations and
prioritize the topics that are most urgent or relevant on an ongoing basis.

1.12.2. Invite and arrange for outside organizations to provide health education
classes on the identified topics that are within their expertise;

1.12.3. Schedule the presenters;

1.12.4. Ensure the provision of interpreter services;

1.12.5. Notify clients of class schedules:

1.12.6. Health education session topics may include, but are not limited to;

1.12.6.1. Health insurance terms, coverage requirements, options and the
enrollment process.

1.12.6.2. Disabilities, including but not limited to autism".

1.12.6.3. Women's health, including but not limited to domestic violence
and reproductive health;

1.12.6.4. Men's health;

" 1.12.6.5. Emotional Wellness;

1.12.6.6. Lesbian. Gay, Bisexual, and Transgender (LGBT) health;

1.12.6.7. Oral health and hygiene:

1.12.6.8. Vision health:

1.12.6.9. Nutrition and benefits of exercise;

1.12.6.10.Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV);

1.12.6.11.Tuberculosis risk reduction;

1.12.6.12.Fire safety.

1.12.7. The Contractor shall provide health education in a culturally and
linguistically appropriate manner.

1.12.8. The Contractor shall distribute satisfaction surveys at health education
sessions, to survey clients on the usefulness of the . information,
presentation style, and other relevant information.

ST
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1.13. The Conlractor shall Inform and coordinate community resources for the provision
of health care services not covered by Refugee Medical Assistance (RMA) or
other funding sources.

1.14. The Contractor shall support the provision of nohclinical interventions, such as
adjustment support groups, to promote refugee wellness and prevent suicide.

1.15. The .Contractor shall participate ir) National Alliance oh Mental Illness Mental
Health First Aide trainings and/or other similar professional development
opportunities, to Inform practices.

1.16. The Contractor shall support and/or assist with periodic screening of refugees
for emotional distress using the Refugee Health Screener 15 (RHS-15).
communicate results, and rhake referrals to health care providers as needed.

1.17. The Contractor shall maintain relationships with the health (including mental
health) providers within the refugee resettlement network through outreach,
education and meetings. Areas of focus shall include but are not limited to:

1.17.1. Refugee health needs and culture.

1.17.2. Barriers to care that mayinclude but are not limited to language, cultural
factors, and transportation issues.

1.17.3. Continued adherence to the CDC Refugee Health Guidelines for the initial
domestic medical examination.

1.17.4. National Standards for CLAS In health and healthcare.

1.18. The Contractor shall develop and foster relationships with a minimum of four (4)
health care (including mental health) providers who are not in the refugee
resettlement network through outreach, meetings and education. Areas of focus
shall include, but not be limited to the following:

1.18.1. Refugee health needs and culture.

1.18.2. Barriers to care that include, but are not limited to language and culture
barriers, and transportation issues.

1.18.3. CDC Refugee Health Guidelines for the initial domestic medical
examination.

1.18.4. National Standards for CLAS in health and healthcare.

1.19. The Contractor shall provide education and training to refugees at various
stages of resettlement about the availability of health insurance through the
Marketplace and alternative sources.

1.20. The Contractor shall provide assistance with accessing, navigating and enrolling
in health insurance options through the Marketplace, expanded Medicaid or
other financial assistance options including but not limited to facilitating
applications.

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02 Contractor Initials. ^
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1.21. The Contractor shall provide planning and evaluation for Refugee, Health
Promotion Program (RHPP), including but not limited to the following:

1.21.1. Develop and collect linguistically appropriate surveys/questionnaires that
are built into health sessions and trainings.

1.21.2. Track the following:

1.21.2.1. Number of.referrals made;

1.21.2.2. Number of training sessions and participants;

1.21.2.3. Number of consultations or point of,contact with providers;
and

1.21 !2.4. Number of meetings and training sessions.

,1.21.3; Feedback with health service providers to learn how the coordination is
working and make adjustments as necessary.

1.21.4. Internal feedback with staff, particularly case managers .(and other case
management specialists) to evaluate the relevance of the' orientations to
implement necessary changes leading to anticipated improvements.

. 1.22; The Contractor shall communicate any health screening results received,
which may be conducted by the Contractor or by a third party, concerning a
client, to medical providers as needed.

1.23. The Contractor shall facilitate referrals to behavioral health providers, as
needed.

1.24. The Contractor shall maintain documentation of the following:

1.24.1. Overall number of refugees resettled in the reporting period.

1.24.2. Number of initial domestic health examinations completed within thirty (30);
sixty (60) and ninety (90) days of arrival.

1.24.3. Number of refugees receiving health and/or mental health case
management services to address complex health conditions beyond the
initial domestic health examination.

1.24.4. The demographics of the refugees served, including gender, age. primary
language; and country fled.

1.24.5. Number of refugees referred for follow-up services related to Dental
Issues, Emergency Issues (ER), Tuberculosis, HIV, Mental Health,
Infectious Disease, Physical Therapy. Prenatal Care, Hearing Issues.
Vision Issues, and other conditions identified by the NH State Refugee
Health Coordinator.

1.24.6. Number of refugees assisted in.obtaining appropriate health insurance -
both upon arrival, and at the time of transition off Refugee Medical
Assistance. _
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1.25. The Contractor shall identify the primary health related issues of concern in
each of the various refugee communities. Concerns may include but are not
limited to diabetes, hypertension, mental health and/or oral health concerns.

.  1.26. The Contractor shall provide all required reporting to,the Department within
fifteen (15) days following the completion of the reporting period.

1.27. The Contractor shall provide semi-annual reporting to the Department within
thirty (30) days following the completion of the reporting period.

1.28. The Contractor shall provide all required reporting at in-person meetings as
requested by the Department.

1.29. The Contractor shall have the following staff:

1.29.1. One (1) Administrator; and

1.29.2. One (1) Health Case Manager.

1.30. The Contractor shall participate in trainings in order to understand health
insurance coverage and enrollment requirements on both the state and federal
level.'

2. Reporting Requirements

2.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to the Department within thirty
(30) days following the end of the reporting period, to. include but not limited
to:

2.1.1. Number arrivals by gender and immigration status.

2.1.2. Number receiving tuberculosis screening within the following time periods:

2.1.2.1. Thirty (30) days of arrival;

2.1.2.2. Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and

2.1.2.3. . Ninety (90) days or more.

2.1.3.^ Number receiving initial health exam within the following time periods:

2.1.3.1. Thirty (30) days of arrival;

2.1.3.2. Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and

2.1.3.3. Ninety (90) days or more.

2.1.4. Number of children age six (6) months to sixteen (16) years of age that
have been screened for lead.

2.1.5. Number of children scheduled for first dental .appointment within six (6)
months of arrival.

2.1.6. Number of clients referred to the following:

2.1.6.1. Primary care provider; t

2.1.6.2. Dental care provider;
■|T

1^
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2.1.6.3. Emergency room; ;

2.1.6.4. Mental health provider;

2.1.6.5. Infectious disease specialist;

2.1.6.6. Vision care provider;

2.1.6.7. Hearing care provider;

2.1.6.8. Pre-natal care provider; and

2.1.6.9. Other specialists.

2.1.7. Number of clients receiving services by country of origin.

2.1.8. Number of clients receiving health case management services;

2.1.9. Number receiving mental health case management services.

2.1.10. Number clients participating in an adjustment support group.

2.1.11. Number clients receiving initial health orientation and topic(s) covered.

•2.1.12. Numl^er clients receiving health educatfon and topic(s) covered.

2.1.13. Number of service providers receiving training.

2.1.14. Number of health case manager trainings and topicfs).

2.2. The Contractor shall submit semi-annual reports to the Department within
thirty (30)..days following the period completion, and as required by grantor.^

2.3. The Contractor shall submit a final program report to the Department within
thirty (30) days prior to the completion of the contract period.

3. Performance Measures

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure the following performance indicators are achieved
annually and monitored on a monthly basis to measure the effectiveness of
the agreement:

3.1.1. 100% of all health-related orientations and workshops/trainings shall be
provided throughout the project period, as necessary.

3;il2. 100% of all newly arrived refugees and those who have been in the United
States two (2) years or less shall be prioritized.

3.1.3. 100% of all written materials and resources produced shall be identified
and prioritized for translation as applicable.

3.1.4. 100% of all interpreter services shall be coordinated consistently and
regularly throughout the project period. '

3.1.5. 100% of all refugees with acute or chronic health conditions who require
care beyond the initial medical examination. shall receive case
management, including but not limited to:

iT
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3.1.5.1. Scheduling and coordinating medical appointments;

3.1.5.2. Transportation services; and

3.1.5.3. Interpretation services.

3.1.6. 80% of refugees shall demonstrate increased knowledge about health
insurance requirements including how. when and where to enroll in health
insurance.

3.1.7. 80% of adults will demonstrate increased knowledge about accessing and
navigating US Health system.

3.1.8. 80% of adults will know, how to make and keep health appointments.

3.1.9. 80% of adults will know how to use public, Medicaid and/or appropriate
transportation to get to medical appointments.

3.1.10. 80% of adults will demonstrate increased knowledge of at least one health
topic.

3.1.11. 100% of clients with health needs beyond initial exam will be scheduled for
follow-up care.

3.1.12. 100% of arrivals with mental health needs will be scheduled for

appointment within 60 days of arrival.

3.1.13. A minimum of four (4) new relationships with providers outside of the
refugee resettlement network shall be established during each annual
project period.

3.1.14. A minimum of four (4). meetings with providers within the refugee
resettlement network shall take place during each annual project period.

3.2. The Contractor shall measure program outputs through the following which shall
include but not be limited to: ^

3.2.1. Number and percentage of new refugees' attending group health
orientations, and the topics completed during each session;

3.2.2. Number of percentage of new refugees' receiving a health home visit.

3.2.3. Number of referrals to health, mental and behavioral health or other
services.

3.3.The Contractor shall measure the health literacy among refugees and the
improvement of their understanding of their health and of the American health
system by utilizing a simple questionnaire offered at each workshop and
orientation.

3.4.The Contractor shall track the number of individuals participating in'and
completing health education sessions, as well as the topics covered in each
session.

AT
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3.5. The Contractor shall track the number and percentage of refugees receiving
health and mental health case management services, including:

3.5.1. Refugee demographics.

3.6.The Contractor shall track the number of health providers in the refugee
resettlement network receiving education/ training.

3.6.1. The Contractor shall triack the number of health providers outside the
refugee resettlement network receiving education/training.

3.7. The Contractor shall measure the effectiveness of support services-provided to
refugees to increase their access to appropriate health insurance by tracking
the number and percentage of refugees accessing affordable health insurance
upon arrival and those educated about and referred for assistance in obtaining
appropriate health insurance, when transitioning off ■ Refugee Medical
Assistance.

3.8. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with the Department and other key
stakeholders to adapt any performance targets if necessary.

3.9. The Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan to the
Department for any performance measure that was not achieved.

3.10. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes. >

3.11. The Contractor may be required to provide other-key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

3.12. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

4. Additional Terms

4.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

4.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or. federal legislation
or court orders rrlay have an impact on the Services described herein, the
State has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure
requirernenls under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

4.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

4.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of the
language assistance services they will provide to persons with limited
English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure, meaningful
access to their programs and/or sen/ices within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.
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4.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

4.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the services
of the Contract shall include the following statement. "The preparation of"
this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds
provided In part by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding
sources as were available or required, e.g., the United States Department

^  of Health and Human Sen/jces."

4.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution or
use.

4.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

4.3.3.1. Brochures.

4.3.3.2. Resource directories.

4.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

4.3.3.4. Posters.

4.3.3.5. ^ Reports..

4.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

4.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

4.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor shall
comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall Impose an order or duty upon the contractor -
with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services
at such facility. If any governmental license or permit shall be required for
the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all limes ,
comply with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In
connection with the foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities
shall comply with ail rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the
State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and
shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.
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4.5. Eligibility Determinations

4.5.1. If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals such
eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable
federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and
procedures.

4.5.2. Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times
as are prescribed by the Department.

4.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services
hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to support an

eligibility determination and such other Information as the Department
requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and
documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department
may request or require.

4.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as
well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an
application form and that each.applicaht or re-applicant shall be informed
of his/her right to a fair hearing In accordance with Department regulations.

5. Records

5.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

5.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
.  'evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor.

5.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and
expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include,,
without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of
costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for
materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

5.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of applicatiori and eligibility
(including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient),
records regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to
the Department to obtain payment for such services.
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5.2. ' During the term of, this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as. by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, al jts discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

6. Termination Report/Transition Plan

6.1. In the event of early termination of the Agreement, the Contractor shall, within
15 days of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the" State a
Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not limited to,
identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the
Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

6.2. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State arid shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan Including, but not limited to,
any information or data requested by the Slate related to the termination of the
Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and
revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

6.3. In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to
clients receiving services under the Agreement are trarisitioned to having
services delivered by another entity including contracted providers or the State,
the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted deliveiy of services in
the Transition Plan.

6.4. The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected
Individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed
communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State as described
above.

7. Exhibits Incorporated

. 7.1. All Exhibits D through H and J are attached hereto and Incorporated by reference
herein.

7.2. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information
(Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability
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and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached
Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties
and is incorporated by reference herein.

7.3. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein..
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded with federal funds.

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved

.  line item, as specified in Exhibits C-1. Budget through Exhibit C-4. Budget.

3. The Contractor shall submit an Invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20th) working day of the following month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The
Contractor shall ensure the Invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment.

4. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to laura.mcglashan@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Laura McGlashan, NH Slate Refugee Health Coordinator
Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Health Equity
97 Pleasant Street, Thayer Building
Concord, NH 03301

(603)-271-2688

5. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient
funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions Form
Number P-37 of this Agreement.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in Form'P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit 8. Scope, of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

8. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of
Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to
the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.
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10. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive. Council, if needed and
justified.

11. Audits

11.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

11.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR
Part 200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

11.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to
the requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to
charitable organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or
more.

11.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and
required by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC)
regulations to submit an annual financial audit.

.11.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

11.3. If Condition 8.. or Condition C exists, the. Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an Independent CPA within' 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

11.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of \he
Cpntract, it Is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed .because of such an exception.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 el seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera! Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a Stale
may elect to make one certiricatlon to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarmenl. Contractors using this form should
send it to: .

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street, '
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workpl^e by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace:
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabililalion, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be.engaged in the performance of the grant be

give;n a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, wilhin ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant

' officer on whose grant activity the convicted en>ployee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit 0 - Certification regarcling Dfug Ffee Vendor Initials
Workplace Requirements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipl of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. - Requiring such employee to parllclpate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. Stale, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementatidn of paragraphs 1.1,1.2,1.3,1.4.1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the slte(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

Vendor Name;

I irk
Date ^ 1

CBo

CuOHHsnioro

.  iTExhibil D - Ceflificalion regardir^g Drug Free Vendor Imtois . ,
Workplace Requiremenls
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATiON REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
"Social Services Block Grant Program .under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block 'Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, ah officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a f^ember of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its'instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (Including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and thai all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly;

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
transaction imposed by Section 1351 Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name;

10

Dale Nai^
Tie:

CUA)HKS'nOM3

Exhibit C - Certification Regarding Lot)bying ..Vcf^dor Initials j f
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive.Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection wilh the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective,

,  primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) Is submitted If at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitled or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. '

5. The terms "covered transaction,' "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction.' "participant,' "person,* "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used In this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definilions and
Coverage sections of the rules implemenling Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into. It shall not khovwngly enler Into any lower tier covered

• transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "CertificaUon Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in ail lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the,covered transaction, unless It knows that the certifjcalion is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but Is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

CU'OHHS'IIO'O

6)4ilbil F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Vendor initials,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which Is normally possessed by a prudent !
person in the ordinary course of business dealings. j

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant In a |
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is j
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in |
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default. I

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS |
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its i

principals: I
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or . :

- volunlarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; i
11.2. have not within a three«year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had j

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in :
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local) j
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust j
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or r^eiving stolen properly:

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. Slate or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph (f)(b)
of this certification: and

11.4. have nolvyithin a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS |
13. By signing and submitting.lhls lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined In 45 CFR Part ys. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that It and its principals; |
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or j

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. j
13.2. where the prospective iower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract). j

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will |
include this clause entitled Xertiiication Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineiigibility. and j
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions/ without modificallon in all lower tier covered " j
transactions and in alt solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:

l>fl-.  ....

Date Nam^
Title: f

lennicaiion Kcgaroing ueDaffiieni. oirapension vKtmui mukiia .

And Other Responsibility Matters ^/i ft /n /-v
P.no(.Oof? Dale

Exhibit F - Certificalion Regarclir>g Debarment. Suspension Verxlor Iniliab
And Other Responsibil
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

/  ' ■ •

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH>BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, io execute the following
certification;

Vendor will comply, and will require any sut>grantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may Include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Slreels Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color,,religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this i
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or !
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal j
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements; . i

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or activity): 1

. the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability. In regard to employment and the delivery of ^ >
services or benefits, in any program or activity; [

- the Americans \Mth Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits [
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for^ persons with disabilities in employment. State and local j
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits - j
discrimindtlon on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs; ~

. - the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include j
employment discrimination: , ,

- 28 C.F.R. pt, 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulatlons - OJJOP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies i
and Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for fatlh-based and community !
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations; i

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based j
Organizations); and Whislleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (I^DAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for j
Enhancement of Conlracl Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against-
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts. j

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the |
agency awards the grant. False certification or violalipn of the certification shall be grour^s for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or j
debarmenl. !

Exhibit G ■ • , , \*^ ' !
Vendor Initials I
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

^

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Slate administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and j
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Conlraclor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:.

I .• By signing and submitting this proposal (conlract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

.J?o
Date . I , Nam^'

Title; CffC

Ve ame:

ExhiWl G A \
Vendof Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), recjuires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library-services to children"under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee, The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
It/ledlcare or Medicaid funds, and porlioris of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of (he law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penally of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
ail applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Name:Ve

Date ' Name:
Title: CiS:o

Exhibll H - CertiricaUon Regarding Vendor Initials
Environmental Tobacco Smoke
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit!

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

{^) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
•  Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45. Code .
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aoareaation' shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" In 45 CFR
.  Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act.TltleXIII. Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

1. "Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(0.

j, "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices.

k. "Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. .-p
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit!

I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her deslgnee.

n. "Securitv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terrhs not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITEGH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. • Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
i. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
' third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which .it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associafe, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure Is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response.to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 ExWblll Conliaclor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional resirictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObllQatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall Include, but not be
limited to;

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
. disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health infonnation was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule. /

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Conlractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

Exhibit I • Conttadof tnitials' ^3/2014
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuartl to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph # 13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all i
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement. [

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity. . i
Business Associate shall provide access to PHl in a Designated Record Set to the ■

Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual In order to meet the |
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524. j

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an |
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record j
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for j
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its |obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526. j

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to ^
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by, an |
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section •
164.528. !

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR :
Section 164.528. t

k. " In the event any Individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI J
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) 1
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the . |
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the j
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business |
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate ;
shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify J
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy,'as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to In
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeasible, for so long as Business ̂
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Exhibit I

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to

' Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entltv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance vyith 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or

"disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 164.622,
to the extent that such reslriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either imnnediateiy
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning-as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

■ b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law,

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

b. Interpretation. The parlies agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit .Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. ^ y.
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the Invalid term or condition: to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

The State

" '.Tjhndt d/.lftAg^
SignaUiri of Authorized Representativ«Representative

International Institute of New England

ame oHhe CXmtractor

Name of Authorized RMreSentative.

Title o^uthorized Representative

Date

 Sl^ctatuj-e of Authorized Representative
Jeffrey Thielman

Name of Authorized Representative

President and CEO

Title of Authorized Representative

3111 [z,0
Date

3W14 Exhibit I
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
^  ACT (FFATAi COMPLIANT

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1.2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $26,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25 000 the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award ,
3. Funding agency
4. 'nAICS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. LocaUpn of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
.9. Unique Identifier of the entity (DUNS#)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if;

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment Is made.
The Contractor identified in Section i.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Informalion). and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the foliowing Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
FinanciarAccounlability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

3l'V<
Dale Name:

cu/OHH&iions Pag«1or2
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FORMA

As (he Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate..

1, The DUNS number for your entity is: "^0£) &
2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization

receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans; grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,0(K),000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

j< NO YES

If the answer to #2 above Is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation.of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount;.

Amount:,

Amount:,

Amount:

Amount:

cuOHxs'iioru
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Exhibit K

. DHHS Information Security. Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

•Confidential Information also Includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of v/hich collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate^ subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.-

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
,  which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a

system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, Instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misroutlng of physical or electronic

V5. Lest update 1(V0»16 ' Exliibil K Conttactor liiHials ^ ̂
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State' of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and-
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information' (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish .
.  or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal

Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19. biometric records, etc..
atone, or Nwhen combined with other personal or identifying Information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the-
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C;F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart 0. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that Is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards.developing organization that is accredited by
' the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Iriformation.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V5. Laslup0ale1(V09/i8 ExIiiWlK ContraclorInitials
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

request Ifor disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to'the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
tJser must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer.disks
or portable Storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3." Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email Is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized.to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If. End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site. ^ .

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wifeless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireiess network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidentiai Data, a virtual, private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

' 11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor.agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/of Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protectirig .Departmerit confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anli-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for.any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall t>e rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
' in accordance with Industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media

sanitizatlon. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described In NIST Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce.-The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirernenls will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping,

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected,, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

vs. Lost update I0r0»18 Exhibit K Contraclw Initials
DHHS infofmalion I /

Security Requirementa _ 3 / ̂ ̂  leiO
Page 6 of 9 Date;



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

OHMS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential, security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an inlernai process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor. Including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with ail applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of. the survey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the-life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

.10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office,
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future.breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

VS.Lasl update 10/09/18 Exhibit K ConlraclorJnilialj
DHHS Informalion | /

Secufily Recjulfementj
Pagc6ol9 Pa'e ' '



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164)'that govern protections for Individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State taw.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
•  physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to

prevent unauthorized use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements

" established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
"Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/Avww.nh.gov/doil/vendor/lndex.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential Information breach, computer
security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any Stale of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Stale of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that ail End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section ly A. above,
implernented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

• b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected,

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

vs. Last update 10/09/16 Exliil)itK Coiit/actorliutials
DHHS information
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours {e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data. Including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to"^ credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

I

V. LOSSREPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any ■
Security Incidents and Breaches, immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI. , '

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine If personally identifiable Information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

vs. Laslupdaie 1(V09/18 Exhibii K Contraclor Initials.
DHHS information

^  Security Requirerner^is
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Humian Services
Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notincatlon is required, and, if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable. In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

8. DHHS Security Officer;

DHHSInformationSecurllyOffice@dhhs.nh.90v

.. <^1
vs. Losl u'pdolc .1W09/18 ExhibilK Conlraciof initials
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Siccrclar)' of Sinlc of the Slate of New I lampshirc, do licreby certify that INTERNATIONAL

INSTlTUTIt OF NEW ENGLAND, INC. is n Massachiiscus Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact Imsincss in New

Hampshire on February 12, 2016.1 further certify that all fees and doeumcntis required by the Sccreiiiry of State's office have

been received and Is In good standing as far as this ofiice is concerned.. -

business IDi 739)94

Certificate Number: 0004827021

BS.

•53

%

T/TI

INTESIIMONY WJIEREOI-.

i hereto set my hand and cause to be alfixcd

the Seal oftlte State ofNew llamp.shirc,

this 5lli day of March A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY .

1. Deborah Shufrin ^ hereby certify that:
(Namo of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC: cannot be contract ?igna!ofy)

1. 1 am a duty elected Clerk/Secrelary/Officer of the International Institute of New England
(CorporaliofVLLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Oirectors/shareholders, duly called and
held on December 1 2015 , et which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present
and voting;

(Date)

VOTED: That Jeffrey Thietman, Chief Executive Officer end President (may list more
than one person)

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

Is duly authorized on behalf of the Intematlonarinslitute of England to enter into contracts or agreements with
the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further Is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements end other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modificatioris thereto. lA^ich
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vole.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
dale of the contract termination to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty (30)
days frorh the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It is understood that the Stale of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the posllion(8)
Indiceted and (hat they havb full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any llmjis on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts wth the State of New Harhpshire, ell such
limitations are expressly elated herein.

Dated:

STATE OF MASSACHUSETTS

County of ' •

The foregoing Instrument was acknowledged before me this day of . 20,

Elec edature if

Name: Det>orah Shufrfn^"
TiUe:

By ^
(Name of Elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of the Agency)

(Notary Public/Juslice of the Peace)

(NOTARY SKAi.)

Commission Expires;

Rev. 09/23/19



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

Page 1 of 2

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

06/26/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or l>e endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Hllli* of Kaaaachuaatta, inc.

c/o 26 Cantury Blvd

P.O. Box 305191

Naahvilla, TN 372305191 USA

COMTACT
NAME:

P.,V 1-877-945-7378 1-880-467-2378
fe-MAIL _ a
AnDRPSS: cartificataaSwillia.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICF

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company 18058

INSURED

Intarnatlonal Inatituta of Raw England, Inc.

2 Boylaton stcaat

3rd Floor

Boston. MB 02116

INSURERS Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of A 31194

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURERS

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: "12379603 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL
INSO

SUHtt
YWD POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
fMM/OD/YYYYI

POLICY EXP
<MM/DD/YYYY1 LIMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

)E OCCUR .

PHPK1971787 05/05/2019 05/05/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE S  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC
DAMAGETOKENIED
PRFMISES (Ea occtjrrencel

%  1,000,000

MED EXP (Any one person] %  20,000

PERSONAL 8 ADV INJURY $  1,000,000

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE S  3,000,000

policy 1 1 |loc
OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $  3,000,000

$

A

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY,

PHPK1971787 05/05/2019 05/05/2020

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acddentl

s

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) S  1,000,000

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED '

AUTOS ONLY

X

X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accideni) S  1,000,000

X
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accidentl

s

. $

- A
X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

X jOCCUR
CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB62e213 05/05/2018 05/05/2019

EACH OCCURRENCE J  5,000,000

AGGREGATE - s  5,000,000

DEO X RETENTIONS 10,000 ' s

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y, ̂
ANYPROPRIETOFVPARTNER/EXECUTIVE ("771
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDEO? N
(Mandatory In NH) ' '
1/ yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATORS below

N/A

6JUB-9975L65-4-19 10-1-19 10-1-20
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER N/A

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT J 500,000

E.L DISEASE ■ EA EMPLOYEE $ 500.000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMfT s  500.000
B Directors and Officers Liability 106099283 05/05/2019 05/05/2020 Limit $1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Ramarlts Schadula. may be attached If more apaca is required)

Named Insured includes International Institute of New Haii^shire, Inc. and International Institute of Lowell, Inc.

SEE ATTACHED

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Contracts & Procurement

DHHS, State of NH

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Evidence qf Coverage

ACORD 25(2016/03)

© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SR ID: 18430220 BATCH: 1341007



AGENCY CUSTOMER 10:

LOC »:

ACORCf ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 2 of 2

AGENCY

Willis of Massachusetts, Inc.

NAMED INSURED
International Institute of Mew England, Inc.

2 Boylston Street

POLICY NUMBER 3rd Floor

See Page 1 Boston, HA 02114

CARRIER NAIC COOS

See Page 1 See Page 1 EFFECTIVE DATE: See Page 1

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER! 25 FORM TITLE: CTtificaf of Liability In»uranc*

INSURER AFFORDING COVERAGE: Philadelphia Indamnity Inauranca Company ^
POLICY NUMBER; PHPK1971787 EFF DATE: 05/05/2019 EXP DATE: 05/05/2020

NAIC«: 18058

TYPE OF INSURANCE:

Property

LIMIT DESCRIPTION:

Business Pers Prop

Bus Income/Extra Bxp

LIMIT AMOUNT:

$638,690

$1,141,997

ACORD 101 (2008/01) (S) 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SR ID: 18430220 BATCH: 134l'007 CERT: W12379603
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The mission of the International Institute of New England Is to create opportunities for refugees and Immlgrarits
to succeed through resettlement, education, career advancement and pathways to citizenship.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of
International Institute of New England, Inc.i

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of International Institute of New England, Inc.
(a Massachusetts nonprofit corporation), which comprise the statements of financial position as of
September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of activities and changes In net assets, cash
flows and functional expenses for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Managements Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements In
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America; this Includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material mlsstatemenl, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on "these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing star^dards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement;

An audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures In
.the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, Including the
assessment of the risks" of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers Internal control relevant to the enllt/s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are approprialis In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's Internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
Includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the' reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial staterrients .referred to above present fairly, In all material respects, the
financial position of International Institute of New England, Inc. as of September 30,2019 and 2018, and
the changes In Its net assets and Its cash flows for the years then ended In accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted In the United States of America.

Wedesley, Massachusetts
February 11,2020

Page 1



INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statements'of Financial Position

Assets 2019 2018

Current Assets;

Cash $  303,109 S  432,887

Short-term investments 600,000 800,000

Contracts, contributions and other receivables 940,079 713,203

Prepaid expenses and other 75,131 113,891

Fund held for others - 47,000

Total current assets 1,918,319 2,106,981

Investments 6,389,743 6,595,749

Properly and Equipment, net . 1,728,194 1,895,424

Security Deposits 100,434 100,434

Total assets $ 10,136,690 S 10,698,588

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities;

Accounts payable $ - 66,190 $  43,929

Accrued expenses > 372,088 326,886

Current portion of lease Incentive 110,782 110,782

Deferred revenue 84,864 60,803

Fund held for others - 47,000

Total current liabilities 633,924 589,400

Deferred Rent and Lease Incentive, net of current portion 857,417 951,257

Totalliabilities 1,491,341 1,540,657

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions: •

•

Operating 7,535,501 8,016,351

Property and equipment ■  971,188 ■  1,027,634

Total without donor restrictions 8,506,689 9,043,985

With donor restrictions 138,660 113,946

Total net assets 8,645,349 9,157,931

Total liabilities and.net assets $ 10,136,690 ■ $ 10,698,588

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 2



MTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE Of NEW ENCIAND. INC.

S(«tefneA» of ActKiittes and Chances In Net Assets

for the Years Ended Septembei 30.2019 and 2018

2019 20JS

Revenues:

Contract services

Grants and contributions

Donated goods and services

Program service fees
Interest, dividends and other

. United Way allocation

Net assets released from program rivtdcllons

Total revenues

Expenses:

Program services

General and adminKtralive

Fundralsing

Total expenses

Changes In net assets from operations

Net Investment Cain

Loss on Disposal of Property and Equipment

Changes In net assets

Net Assets:

Beginning of year

End of year

Without Donor With Donor Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrktiorss Total Restrictions Restrictions Total

$ 3.694,803 $ 5 3,694,803 5 3,067,101 $ S 3,067,101

1,779,756 392,684 2,172,440 1.436.205 332,054 1.768,259

1,062,113 . 1,062,113 788,778 • 788,778 •

356,907 356,907 161,481 • 161,481

■  166,086 166,086 188,388 188,388

.  60,000 60,000 92,171 •"92,171

367,970 (367,970) . 302,059 (302,059) •

7,487,635 24,714 7,512,349 6,036.183 29.995 6.066,178

5,777,790 .  5,777,290 4,664,245 4,664,245

1,351,264 1,351.264 1,407,189 1.407.189

1,079,977 1.079,977. 764.120 • 764,120

8,208,531 8,208.531 6.835,554 6,835,554

(720,896) 24,714 (696,182) (799.371) 29,995 (769376)

192,629 192,629 269,136 •
269,136

(9,029) (9,029) - .

.  (537.296) 24,714 (512,582) (530.235) 29,995 (500.240)

9,043,985 113,946 9.157,931 9,574,220 83,951 9,658,171

5 8,506,689 5 . 138.660 $ 8.645,349 5 9.043,985 5  113,946 5 9.157,931

The accompanying notes are an Integral pan of these statements. Page}



INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended September 30,2019 and 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Changes in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile changes In net assets to net cash
used In operating activities:

Net investment gain

Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Depreciation

Amortization of lease incentive

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Contracts, contributions and other receivables
Prepaid expenses and other
Security deposits
Accounts" payable
Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Deferred rent

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Proceeds from sale/transfer of investments

Acquisition of property and equipment
Investment purchases

Net cash provided by Investing activities

Net Change In Cash

Cash:

Beginning of year •

End of year

2019 2018

S  (512,582) S  (500,240).

■  (192,629) (269,136)

9,029 •

282,936 255,324

(110,784) (110,784)

(226,876) 163,904

38,760 (88,299)

- (3,692)

22,261 15,471

45,202 18,441

. 24,061 27,307

16,944 29,194

(603,678) (462,510)

775,050 . 774,950

(124,735) .  (254,846)
(176,415) .  (181,415)

473,900 338,689

(129,778) (123,82i)

432,887 556,708

$  303,109 S  432,887

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these statements. Page 4
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

for the Year Ended September 30,2019
(With Summarlted Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30,2018)

2019 2018

Personnel and Related:

Salaries

Donated services

Payroll taxes and fringe benefits

Purchased and contracted services

Staff training

Recruitment

Total personnel and related

Occupancy:

Rent and utilities

Depreciation

Equipment rental
Repairs and maintenance

Total occupancy

Other:

Client assistance

Special events

Donated goods
Professional fees

Depreciation

Supplies and materials
'  Travel, meetings and conferences

Service charges

Telephone
Insurance

Dues and subscriptions

Printing

Advertising

Postage

Storage
Miscellaneous

Total other

Total expenses

9,S61

594.418

717,3&4

148,998

'63,141
68,263

41,013

7,305

64,461

17,079

9,780

8,587

16,049

4,'872
9,661

4,169

1,180,742

S 5,777,290

General

16,460

and

Program Adminis

TotalServices trative Fundraising Total -

S 2,492,807 $  736,209 $  515,678 $ 3,744,694 $ 3,234.291

913,115 . - •  913,115 663,746

470.743 ■ 144.123 98,256 713,122 561,924

120,332 122,337 16,383 259,052 263,813

3,567 4,595 5,149 13,311 7,059

1.566 2,314 -
3,880 11,032

4,002,130 1,009,578 635,466 5,647.174 4,741,865

417.070 50,445 54,643 '  522,158 517,951

151.394 34,316 16,148 201,858 190,088

16,393 • 968 780 18,141 13.995

2,256

92,628 71,571 • 758,617 724,290

717,364 493,744

295,880 295,880 161,215

. . 148,998 125,032

98,348 98,348 137,752

9,340 8,597 81,078 65,236

9,168 ' ■ 2,418 79,849 70,169

22,603 12,626 76,242 76,958

51,894 14,813 74,012 55,732

3;366 4,612 72,439 63,547

35,686 - 52,765 52,866

14,555 11,687 36,022 21,732

117 15,067 23,771 •  18.772

. 1,041 17,090 7,281

1,841 6,199 .  12,912 8,643

334 . 9,995 10.297

1,806 - 5,973 423

249,058

S 1,351,264

372,940

S 1,079,977

1,802,740

$ 8,208,531

1,369,399

S 6.835,554

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these statements. Page 5



INTERNATIONAL INSTITUrE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

General

and

Program Adminis

Services trative Fundralsing Total

Personnel and Related:

Salaries $ 2,102,635 $  788,954 $ 342,702 $ 3,234,291

Donated services 663,746 -
- 663,746

Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 362,396 141,272 58,256 561,924

Purchased and contracted services 88,022 103,633 '  72,158 253,813

Staff training 3,345 1,335 2,379 7,059

Recruitment 6,433 4,599 - 11,032

Total personnel and related 3,226,577 1,039,793 475,495 . 4,741,865

Occupancy:

Rent and utilities 412,452 61,743 43,756 517,951

Depreciation -  142,567 32,315 15,206 190,088

Equipment rental 11,602 1,561 832 13.995

' ' Repairs and maintenance ■143 2,113 • .  2,256

Total occupancy 566.764 97,732 59,794 .  724,290

Other:'
Client assistance 493,744 •  • - "493,744

Special events ■
- 161,215 161,215

Donated goods ■  125,032 - •  • ■  125,032

Professional fees ■
137,752 - 137,752

Depreciation 45,587 9,444 • 10,205 65,236
Supplies and materials 40,413 27,232 2,524 70,169

Travel, meetings and conferences 51,564 18,446 6,948 76,958

Service charges 12,220 31,301 12,211 55,732

Telephone 56,080 ■  4,177 ; 3,290 63,547

Insurance 17,753 35,113 - . 52,866

Dues and subscriptions 5,394 ■4,262 12,076 21,732

Printing 2,964 loo 15,708 18,772

Advertising 5,556 - 1,725 7,281

Postage 4,300 1,414 2,929 8,643

Storage 10,297 - - 10,297

tvliscellaneous - 423 - 423

Total other 870,904 269,664 228,831 1,369,399

Total expenses S 4,664,245 $ 1,407.189 • $ 764,120. $ 6,835,554

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these statements. Page 6



INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2019 and 2018

1. OPERATIONS AND NONPROFIT STATUS

International Institute of New England, Inc. (the Institute) Is a nonprofit organization that
provides.assistance to the Immigrant and refugee populations of Massachusetts and New
Hampshire. In fiscal years 2019 and 2018, there were approximately 2,S00 and 1,800
undupllcaied people, respectively, from approximately 100 countries that benefited from the

- Institute's services, gaining the knowledge and skills necessary for their Integration Into
American life. The Institute's services include English and literacy classes, citizenship education,
job training and placement, legal aid and counseling services, and case management.

The Institute is exempt from Federal Income taxes as an organization (not a private foundation)
forrned for charitable purposes under Section 50i(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). The
Institute is also exempt from state income taxes. Contributions made to the Institute are
deductible by donors within the requirements of the IRC.

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Institute prepares Its financial statements in accordance "with generally accepted accounting
standards and principles (U.S. GAAP) established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB). References to U.S. GAAP In these notes are to the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC).

Adoption of New Accounting Standard

During fiscal year 2019, the Institute adopted FASB's Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-
lA, Not-for-profit Entitles fPopIc 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit
Entities. This ASU modified the current guidance over several criteria, of which the following
affected the Institute's financial statements:

•  Net assets are segregated into two categories, "with donor restrictions" and "without
donor restrictions", as opposed to the previous requirement of three classes of net
assets (see page 11).

•  Qualitative and quantitative Information relating to management of liquidity and the
availability of finarvclal assets to cover short-term cash needs within one year from the
statement of financial position date (see Note 10).

•  A more detailed explanation of the methods used to allocate costs among program and
•' supporting services (see page 9).

The adoption of this ASU did not impact the Institute's net asset classes, results of operations, or
cash flows for the year ended September 30,2018. This ASU has been applied retrospectively to

•  all periods presented. In accordance with the ASU, the Institute has elected to omit disclosures
. about liquidity and availability of resources for fiscal year 2018.

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major, or central to the provision of
program services are reported as revenues and expenses In the accompanying statements of
activities and changes In net assets. Non-operating activity includes net Investment gains and a

.  loss on disposal of property and equipment.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements In accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management tO'
make estimates and assumptions'that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Page 7



INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30,2019 and 2018

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property and Equipment and Depreciation

Property and equipment are recorded at cost when purchased or at fair value at the date of
donation. Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Estimated

Useful Ufe 2019 2018

Lesser of life of

Leasehold Improvements lease or 10 years $ 1,928,778 $1,891,175
Furniture and equipment • 3-10 years 589,571 525,374
Vehicles 5 years 23.064 23.064"

2,541,413 2,439,613
Less • accumulated depreciation 813.219 544.189

■  Net property and equipment S 1.728194 S 1.895.424

Depreciation expense was $282,936 and $255,324 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts Is recorded based on management's analysis of-specific
accounts and their estimate of amounts that may be uncollectible, if any. No allowance for
doubtful accounts was deemed necessary as of September 30, 2019 or 2018.

Cash

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash does not include cash held in the
Investment portfolio.

Fair-Value Measurements ,

-The Institute follows the accounting arid disclosure standards pertaining to ASC Topic, Fair Value
Measurements, for qualifying assets and liabilities. Fair value is. defined as the price that the
Institute would receive upon selling an asset or pay to settle a liability in an orderly transaction
between rnarket participants.

The Institute uses a framework for measuring fair value that Includes a hierarchy that
categorizes and prioritizes the sources used to nrieasure and disclose fair value. This hierarchy Is
. broken down into three levels based on Inputs that market participants would use In valuing the
financial instruments based on market data obtained from sources Independent of the institute.
Inputs refer broadly to the assurnptions that market participants would use in pricing the
financial Instrument, including assumptions about risk, inputs may be observable or
unobservable. Observable Inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants
would use in pricing the financial Instrument developed based on market data obtained from
sources Independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are.inputs that reflect the
reporting entit/s own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in
pricing the asset developed based on the best Information available.

Pages



INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30,2019 and 2018

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The three-tier hierarchy of inputs is as follows:

Level 1 - inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
at the measurement date.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset either directly
or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active.

Level 3 • Inputs that are unobservable and which require significant judgment or
estimation.

An asset or liability's level within the framework is based upon the lowest level of any Input that
Is significant to the fair value measurement.

Investments ,

Investments are recorded In the financial statements at fair value. If an Investment Is directly
held by the Institute and an active market with quoted prices exists, the market price of an
identical security is used to report fair vajue. Reported fair values of shares.in mutual funds are
based on share prices reported by the funds as of the last business day of the fiscal year. Tbe
Institute's Interest in a limited liability partnership is reported at the net asset value (NAV)
reported by fund managers, which is used as a practical expedient to estimate fair value, unless
it is probable that all or a portion of the investment will be sold for an amount different from
NAV. As of September 30,2019 and 2018, the Institute had no plans to sell this investment.

Revenue Recognition

Grants and contributions without donor restrictions are'recognized as. revenue without donor
restrictions upon receipt or when unconditionally pledged. Contract service revenue and
program service fee revenue are recognized when services are performed and costs are
incurred.'

Donor restricted grants and contributions are recorded as revenue with donor restrictions when
received or unconditionally pledged. When a donor restriction is met (i.e., when a purpose
restriction is met or a time restriction ends), net assets with donor restrictions are transferred to
net assets without donor restrictions as net assets released from restrictions.

All other fevenue is recognized as earned.

Expense Allocations

Program expenses Include direct expenses, as well as indirect expenses, which are allocated
based upon management's estimate of the percentage attributable to each program.

Certain categories of expenses are attributable to more than one program or supporting
function and are allocated on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that
are'allocated are personnel and related, which are allocated on the basis of estimates of time
and effort; occupancy and depreciation, which are allocated on a square footage basis; and
other operating expenses, which are allocated based on management's estimate of usage.
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30,2019 and 2018

2. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Advertising Costs

Costs Incurred for producing and communicating advertising are expensed when Incurred and
are refiected as advertising on the accompanying statements of functional expenses.
Advertising expense was $17,090 and $7,281 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. -

Donated Goods and Services

The Institute receives donated goods and services in various aspects of its program services.
The value of the donated items is based on values assigned or estimates made by the donors.
Donated goods Include food and clothing: and donated services include legal, teaching, and
consulting work. Donated items received were as follows:

2019 2018

Donated service's S .913,115 $663,746
Donated goods 148.998 125.032

S 1.062.113 ' 5 788.778

The Institute also receives a substantial amount of donated administrative services. Many
Individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that help the Institute accomplish
Us goals. These services do not meet the criteria for recognition as.contributed services under
U.S. GAAP and, accordingly, are not Included In the accompanying financial statements.'
'( ■ ' ' ■ . .
Subsequent Events ^

Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 11, 2020, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be Issued. There were no events that met the criteria for
recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.

Deferred Revenue ' ^

Deferred revenue consists of contract advances. These amounts will be recognized as revenue
as the services are provided and costs are incurred.

Income Taxes

The Institute accounts for uncertainty In income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic,-/ncome
Taxes. This standard clarifies the accounting.for uncertainty in tax positions and prescribes a
recognition threshold arid measurement attribute for the financial statements regarding a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The Institute has determined that there
are no uncertairi tax positions which qualify for either recognition or disclosure in the financial
statements at September 30,2019 or 2018. . .

Page 10



INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30. 2019 and 2018

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGES (Continued)

Net Assets

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions:

Net assets without donor restrictions are those net resources that bear no external restrictions
and are generally available for use by the Institute. The Institute has grouped its net assets'
without donor restrictions into the following categories:

Operating • represents funds available to carry on the operations of the Inslilule.

Property and equipment - reflect and account for the activities relating to the Institute's
property and equipment, net of related liabilities.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions:

The Institute receives contributions and grants that are designated by donors for specific
purposes or time periods. These contributions are recorded.as net assets with donor
restrictions until they are either expended for their designated purposes or as the time
restrictions lapse. Net assets with donor restrictions as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, are
purpose restricted.

3; RETIREMENT PLAN

The Institute has a defined contribution retirement plan covering all eligible employees over the
age of twenty-one who have completed a minimum of 1,000 hours of service within each of
their first two years of employment. Employee contributions are vested immediately Into the
plan upon eligibility, the Institute made $74,120 and $43,365 of matching contributions to the
plan during the years .ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, which are Included In
payroll taxes and fringe benefits In the accompanying statements of functional expenses.

4. INVESTMENTS

Investments, which are staled at fair value (see Note 2) in the accompanying statements of
financial position, are as follows;

.  2019 ^ level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Money market funds $ 45,216 $ - S - $ 45,216
Mutual funds:

Equities 4,431,162 - - 4,431,162
Fixed Income 1.244,737 l 1.244.737

^  L 5,721,115

Limited liability partnership (see page 12) 1.268.628

Total Investments

Page 11



INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to FInancidI Statements
September 30,2019 and 2018

4. INVESTMENTS (Continued)

2018 Level 1 level 2 Level 3 Total

Money market funds
Mutual funds:

Equities
Fixed Income

Limited tiability partnership (see below)

Totallnvestments

$  435,546 S $  - $ 435,546

4,307,488 4,307,468
1.464.108 1.464.108

6,207,142

1.188.607

g 7,3g5,749

In accordance with Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2015.07, the Institute's irivestment in a
limited liability partnership Is valued at fair value using the NAV per share (or its equivalent)
practical expedient and has not been cla'ssified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value
amounts presented In the above tables are .Intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value
hierarchy to the amounts presented In the statements of financial position (see Note 2).

"Investments are reported In the accompanying statements of financial position as current or
long-term assets based on management's Intent with respect to the use'of the investments. At
September 30, 2019 and.2018, $600,000 and $800,000, respectively, were reported as current
Investments as management's intent Is to use these funds for operations In the subsequent
year.' . : .

The Investments are not Insured and are subject to market fluctuation. .

CONCENTRATIONS

The Institute maintains Its cash balances with a.couple banks. The Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) Insures balances at each bank up to certain amounts. At certain times during
the year, cash balances exceeded the insured amounts. The Institute has supplemental
coverage at one bank, which Insures the portion of deposits in excess of the FOIC's limit. The
Institute has not experienced any losses In such accounts. Management believes the Institute is
not exposed to any significant credit risk on Its operating cash balance.

Funding agencies and donors exceeding 10% of the Institute's operating revenue, and support
(excluding donated goods and services) or contracts, contributions and other receivables as of
and for the years ended September 30,2019 and 2018, are as follows:

Funder

Commonwealth of Massachusetts
U.S. Committee for Refugees and Immigrants
State of New Hampshire
Private Donor

Operating
Revenue

and Supports

Contracts,
Contributions

and Other

Rece]vables%

2019

17%

16%

7%

■%

2018

18%
16%
•10%

2%

2019

19%
18%

6%
-%

2018

21%
' 6%

^ 7%
14%
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLANDJNC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018 ^

6. FUNDING

The Institute received approximately $2,S40.000 and $2,288,000 of Its funding from government
agencies for the'years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, ail of which arc
subject to audit by the specific government agency. In the opinion of management, the results
of such audits,.if any, will not have a material effect on the financial position of the Institute as
of September 30, 2019 and 2018, or on the changes in its net assets for the years then ended.

7. LEASE AGREEMENTS

The Institute leases its main office space in Boston, Massachusetts under an agreement that
runs through July 2026. Monthly lease payments for fiscal years 2019 and 2018 were
approximately $41,000 and $40,000, respectively, and increase throughout the term of the
lease. The Institute records rent on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The
difference between the monthly lease payments and the related rent expense for a given year Is
recorded as deferred rent. The straight-line rent expense combines the escalation amounts and
an initial three month rent free period. At September 30, 2019 and 2018, deferred rent was
$211,193 and $194,249, respectively, and is included in deferred rent and lease incentive In the
accompanying statements of financial position.

' The lease agreement also included a teriant Improvement allowance of $1,107,822 In the form
of a "reimbursement for construction and related costs Incurred by the Institute for leasehold
Improvements. This Improvement allowance is reported as a liability and Is being amortized
over the lease term. The improvement allowance is included In deferred rent and lease
incentives in the accompanying statements of financial position. Amortization of the lease
incentive was $110,784 during each of the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, and is
netted with rent and utilities In the accompanying statements of functional expenses.

The. Institute leases program and administrative space under various operating leases and
tenant-at-wlll agreements. These leases expire at various dates through January 2025., The

•  leases require the Institute to maintain certain insurance coverage and pay for its proportionate
share of real estate taxes and operating expenses.

Facility rent expense under all leases was approximately $500,000 and $494,000 for the years
ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, which Is included in rent and utilities in the
accompanying statements of functional expenses.

The Institute also has a copier lease with rnonthly payments through June 2022.

Future minimum lease payments under the lease agreements for the next five fiscal years are as
follows:

2020 $ 622,396
. 2021 $617,014
2022 $ 587,850
2023 $ 557,880
2024 S 553,247

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Institute's President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO), is also a member of the Board of
Directors. Compensation and employee benefits for services provided as the President and CEO
are determined by the independent members of the Board of Directors and are based on
performance objectives.

. The Institute's Chief Financial Officer Is also the Institute's Treasurer.
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30,2019 and 2018

9. FUNDS HELD FOR OTHERS

Funds held for others represent amounts held by the Institute on behalf of another agency. This
arrangement ended during fiscal year 2019.

10. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Institute's financial assets available within one year from the statement of financial position
date for general operating expenses are as follows:

Financialassets:'
Cash S 303,109
Short-term Investments 600,000
Contracts, contributions and other receivables • . 940.079

1,843,188
Less-purpose restricted cash and grants receivable • 138.660

-Total financial assets and liquidity resources
available within one year . S 1.7D4.528

The Institute is substantially supported by grants and contributions without donor restrictions
and contract service revenue. As part of the Institute's liquidity management, the Institute has a
policy to structure its financial assets to be available as Its general expenditures, liabilities, and
other obligations come due.

li RECUSS|FICATIONS

Certain amounts in the fiscal year 2018 financial statements have been reclassified to conform
with the fiscal year 2019 presentation.
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Puspa Man Joshi
30 Coliseum Ave., Nashua, NH 03063

(C) 603-264-S789 Puspa Joshi@holmail.com

EMPLOYMENT

HcaUh Service Coordinator ' Jimc2013-PrcsCTt

Inlemational Institute of New England, Manchester
•  ♦ Schedule all initial and follow-up appointment forncvvly arrived refugee clients •
•  Provide health orientation

•  Coordinate core with medical providers

•  Provide urgent medical care case management -
•  Organize trainings for refugee by licalih care providers, pharmacy staff, and medical institute

staff

•  Airport pic- up when clients require a medical escort
•  ' Providing Nepali language interpretation service to clients during appointments when no scrv'icc

was provided by the health care provider and during in house orientations as well.
Helping clients to apply for refugee benefits and attending interview with them.

•  Conduct medical home visits for all new refugee families
•  Specialized support for refugees over 65

Case Manager (Part time, Permanent) Aug., 2011-May 2013
International Institute of New Hampshire, Manchester

•  Providing interprctatioji and translation services to Bluilanese refugees
•  Conduct anchor agreements with US ties
•  30 and 90 day home visits

•  Conduct home safet>'and commuhit>' oiicniations
.♦ Help clients to apply for welfare benefits, SCO. sec. cards, fuel assistance and WIG

Enrolliiient.Coordinator (Paii time, Temporai">0 April, 2011 - July 2011
International Institute of New Hampshire, Manchester

•  Enroll school age children
•  Teach literacy class

Case Worker.(Part time, Tempornry) Dec. 2009-Mar. 2011
ABLE Network, Inc., Manchester, NH

Assisting case managers and coordinators at International institute of New Hampshire in Manciicstcr providing
services to refugees.

Engineering Technician (Part (iniCj Tcmporniy) May 2009 - Oct. 2009
Concord Engineering Group, P.A., Windham, NH
Traffic counts and-dala cntr>' •

f

Data Processor March 2008-July 2008
CitlBank, Son Antonio, Texas
Data cntiy and scanning.

Senior Structural Engineer , June 2006—Nov. 2007
South Texas Engineering, San Antonio, tX
Annl>'zed foundation design of track iiouses and inspected homes with structural problems.



Customer Service Representative* T&P (Part time) May 2002 - May 2006
Tlie Ohio State University, Columbus, Ohio
Cashier

EDUCATION

Ph.D.. City and Regional Planning Master of City and Regional Planning,
The Ohio State University. Department of Civil Engineering, OSU

M.S., Trnnsportalton Engineering B.E., Highway and Bridge Engineering
Department of Civil Engineering, OSU Tungchi University, Shanghai, China

B. Ed., Math and English B.A., Math and Nepali language
Institute of Education, Kirtipur Nepal Tribhuvan University, Nepal

TRAININGS

Diploma in Chinese Language from Peking Language Institute

56 Hours Culture Smart Medical Interpreter Training

Completed 8 Hours Mental Health First Aid Course Training



Contractor Name:

Name of Contract:

KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL
NH Department of Health and Human Services

international Institute of New England, Inc.

New Hampshire Refugee Health promotion Program

fl^ERCENTiPAID
m

felcoNTRAp^rfe;5^ /CONTRACT^fe
<c^"

M;SAl2ARYii,?

Puspa Joshi Coordinator. Health Services $41.261

$0

45.41%

0.00%

{(^n:^$Ts^36:o7:j

WMmmm

$0 0.00%mmmmo)
m^mm\$0 0.00%

$0 0.00%

•$o 0.00%

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages. Line item 1 of Budget request) Kl»?$18;736m

r'SALARYul)

>PERCENT/PAID:

';i;;FROMTHIS^^^j
&:contract^^

(/AMOUNT'RAID.'
«Iv 1 I'.sV\ i *i > Vi> •

j,I^JFROMiTHISit;>
H,slcbNTRACfe-i;-

Puspa Joshl Coordinator, Health Services $47,155 45.41%

$0 0.00%

$0 .'■ 0.00%

$0 0.00%

$0 0.00%
$0 0.00%

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wanes, Line Item 1 of Budget request) . KvTpV,'^$21,'412:65.

^BbD^gt^RERipD;^;^JS!l^i2MVV22:t6:6m23)M3

i:SALARy.X,?

<:PERCENT;PA1D^

f\: CONTRACT.^

.•AMOUNTiPAID'
»};•>,f-ROM;THIS^^-
SVJL*.*
SJCONTRAGJ^:

Puspa Joshl Coordinator, Health Services $47,165 45,41% •412:65
$0 0.00%
$0 0.00% Bmw<m$o.oo
$0 0.00%
$0 0.00%
$0 0.00%

TOTAI SA1_ARIES (Not lo exceed Total/Salary Wages. Line Item 1 of Budget request)
•

^iBUbAfeTiegeieie^SI^^4;(7/:1/23,to:,8/14/23) ss

NAME-«#Btec55-^-^tr-fe
iipWIpPSii f-v" VvVv-:'.,"*= y

♦/(SAOaRYvV./

^hERCENT'PAIb.^
>S>'FRbi5iTHT^^
irlCONTRACT^'^S

i-AMOUNTiRAIDJ
THISk^

;^>^CONTRACT,\t.::
Pusoa Joshi' Coordinator, Health Services $5,894 45.41% /}i;-a-l?.i^:.$2-.67.6:58

$0 0.00%
, $0 0.00%

- •  $0 0.00%
$0 0:00%
$0 O.OOYo

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) i:$2;676;58:


